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Management Discussion and Analysis

o B JE w i B oy B

GENERAL OVERVIEW

For the year ended 31st December, 2008, the consolidated profit
after taxation attributable to shareholders of the Company was
approximately HK$34.20 million (2007: HK$220.80 million) and
the basic earnings per share was 1.31 HK cents (2007: 8.46 HK
cents). The sharp decline in the consolidated annual results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (altogether the “Group”) for the year
under review was mainly attributable to a significant decrease in
gross proceeds from operations to approximately HK$29.11 million
(2007: HK$490.18 million) owing to the fact that there were few

properties of the Group available for sale.

The Group recorded an operating loss of approximately HK$12.64
million from its property development in Shanghai and a net
loss of approximately HK$18.00 million from its securities
trading in Hong Kong during the year of 2008. Nevertheless, the
Group shared a profit of approximately HK$49.25 million from
an associate engaged in property development and investment
in Shanghai and received a dividend income of approximately
HK$8.77 million from a long-term securities investment in Hong

Kong.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) recommends
a payment of a final dividend of HK$0.01 per share for the year
ended 31st December, 2008 (2007: HK$0.02 per share). The final
dividend would be payable to the shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on Friday, 5th June,
2009 subject to the shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. Dividend warrants are expected for

dispatch around Thursday, 18th June, 2009.

OPERATIONS REVIEW

The Group maintains two major business streams which are

property development and investment in Shanghai as well as
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listed securities trading and investment in Hong Kong. As the
sole property development project of the Group in Shanghai has
completed sale of most of its gross floor area in previous financial
years and the results of securities trading in Hong Kong was
suffered from a general decline in global stock markets, the annual
results of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2008 was
mainly attributable to performance of Shanghai Zhangjiang Micro-
electronics Port Co. Ltd., an associate of the Group engaged in
property development and investment in Shanghai, nevertheless,
the share of profit from the associate for the year under review
was reduced as compared with that for the corresponding period
in 2007 as its revenue for the year 2008 was mainly come from
rental income. On the other hand, the Group holds an investment
property and trivial properties for sale in Macau and a negligible

rental income was generated during the year under review.
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Property Development and Investment

LK% E ¥4 B A H](Shanghai Boulevard Real Estate
Co., Limited)

Shanghai Boulevard Real Estate Co., Limited, a 93.53%-owned
subsidiary of the Company, has completed its sole residential
development, namely Tomson Beautiful Space, in Zhangjiang
Hi-Tech Park, Pudong, Shanghai. All the residential area of the
project has been sold. Apart from holding hundreds of car parks in
Tomson Beautiful Space for sale, the subsidiary currently has not

committed to any other investments.

For the year ended 31st December, 2008, sale proceeds of
approximately HK$3.13 million were recognized and accounted for
approximately 11% of the Group’s gross proceeds from operations
while an operating loss of approximately HK$12.64 million was

recorded.
Shanghai Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Port Co. Ltd.

Shanghai Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Port Co. Ltd. (“SZMP?),
an associate of the Group which holds a 37% interest in its
registered capital, has engaged in residential, office and commercial
property development and investment in Zhangjiang Hi-Tech
Park, Pudong, Shanghai and possesses a land bank of a site area
of around 150,000 square meters therein for future development.
As SZMP mainly held investment properties and properties under
development during the year under review, it derived its major
revenue from leasing its office buildings and commercial centre
and shared a profit from its associate, L F3RVTAIZE Rl 4493 2
A BR2A] (Shanghai Zhangjiang Chuang Ye Yuan Technological
Development Ltd.). For the year ended 31st December, 2008,
SZMP reported a profit of approximately HK$133.10 million and
the Group shared a profit of approximately HK$49.25 million.
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Zhangjiang Tomson Garden

Zhangjiang Tomson Garden is a residential development project of
SZMP and two phases of development have been completed. Other
than hundreds of car parks held for sale, the residential area of the

two phases of the residential project has been fully sold out.

SZMP is now developing Phase 3 of Zhangjiang Tomson Garden
by two stages. The first stage will comprise, inter alia, 12 blocks of
apartment buildings of ten to twelve storeys providing a residential
gross floor area of approximately 70,000 square meters while the
second stage will consist of, inter alia, 16 blocks of apartment
buildings of five to eleven storeys providing a residential gross
floor area of approximately 79,000 square meters. Construction of
the first and the second stages commenced in April and November

2008 respectively and is scheduled for completion in 2010 and

2011 correspondingly. It is expected to launch the first stage for
pre-sale by mid of 2009.
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Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Port

Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Port now comprises 9 blocks of
intellectual office buildings, car parks and ancillary buildings in
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park and has been developed by two phases.
Two out of three office blocks of Phase 1 have already been sold
while the remaining seven blocks of the project are earmarked for
investment purpose. As at 31st December, 2008, SZMP held a total
rentable gross floor area of approximately 88,000 square meters of

which approximately 69% were let.
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Chuan Qi Commercial Centre

Chuan Qi Commercial Centre (Phase 1) provides a total gross
floor area of nearly 16,800 square meters for leasing purpose and
an occupancy rate of approximately 67% was recorded as at 31st
December, 2008. The centre is mainly taken up by food and

beverage industry.

Zhangjiang Chuang Ye Yuan Office and Commercial
Development

SZMP holds a 45% interest in FVFIRVLAIZEIERIFERA
FRZvF] (Shanghai Zhangjiang Chuang Ye Yuan Technological
Development Ltd., “Chuang Ye Yuan”). Chuang Ye Yuan has
developed office buildings of a total gross floor area of over 60,000
square meters and commercial buildings of a total gross floor area
of over 20,000 square meters in Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park. Over
half of the office buildings have been sold and Chuang Ye Yuan

made a sound contribution to the results of SZMP in 2008.
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Securities Trading and Investment

The Group has invested in various listed securities in Hong Kong
to diversify its business portfolio and maximize its return to cash
balance. During the year ended 31st December, 2008, securities
trading accounted for approximately 89% of the Group’s gross
proceeds from operations and recorded a net gain of approximately
HK$2.62 million generated from disposal of and dividend receipt
from trading securities. However, owing to a downturn in the
global stock markets in 2008, securities trading of the Group
reported a net loss of approximately HK$18.00 million after taking
account of an unrealized loss on change in fair value of trading

securities of approximately HK$20.62 million.

On the other hand, as at 31st December, 2008, the Group held
an approximately 12.05% interest in the total issued capital of
Tomson Group Limited (“T'GL”), a listed company in Hong Kong
and one of the major property developers in Pudong, Shanghali,
as a long-term investment. A dividend of approximately HK$8.77
million was received from TGL in 2008, however, an unrealized
loss on change in fair value of such investment of approximately
HK$247.23 million was charged to the investment revaluation
reserve in the consolidated balance sheet of the Group as at the
year end date of 2008 according to the applicable accounting

standards.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity and Financing

There was no change to the Group’s capital structure during the
year ended 31st December, 2008 and the Group’s operations and
investments for the year under review were mainly funded by its

cash on hand and revenue from investing activities.

As at 31st December, 2008, the cash and cash equivalents of the
Group amounted to approximately HK$679.34 million. During the
year under review, the Group’s investing activities generated a net

cash inflow of approximately HK$105.90 million. After accounting
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for a net cash outflow of approximately HK$41.84 million used
in operating activities and a dividend payment of approximately
HK$52.17 million by the Company, the net cash inflow of the
Group for the year ended 31st December, 2008 amounted to
approximately HK$11.89 million (2007: HK$339.45 million).
The significant decline in the cash inflow in 2008 was mainly
attributable to a reduction of sale proceeds from the property
development of the Group in Shanghai as most of the properties

held for sale have already been sold out.

The Group had no borrowing at the balance sheet date (2007: Nil).
Of the liabilities of the Group, approximately 98% were due for
repayment within one year from the balance sheet date while the

balance was deferred tax liabilities related to undistributed earnings
of SZMP, the Group’s associate.

As at 31st December, 2008, the Group recorded a current ratio of
5.66 times (2007: 4.61 times) and a gearing ratio (total liabilities
to equity attributable to equity holders of the Company) of 11.32%
(2007: 11.18%). The improvement in current ratio was attributable
to dividends received from SZMP and TGL during the year while
the increase in gearing ratio was resulted from a drop in the equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company after taking account
of the unrealized loss on change in fair value of the long-term

securities investment.

In addition, the Group had no capital commitment (2007: Nil) in
respect of expenditure on property development which has been
contracted for but not provided in the financial statements for

2008.
Charge on Assets

No asset of the Group was subject to any charge as at 31st
December, 2008 (2007: Nil).

KETE I ST I B 2 B A U R
#)41,840,000 5 JC K& A% A A IR A IS £
52,170,000 T & » AEEEE XX
NEF+ZHAZ+—HILFEZHERA
T BE A 55 11,890,000 %5 o0 (T F L AF
339,450,000 #ET0) o "FE AL B 4A T
ARG > FEHRKTBEEDED
BN SAREE N LY EERER
Z B AR D BT

AL E R E H IS S (B LA
) o TEALEZ AET > £ 98% HIRNG A
HEF—4F )2 i E R - MeRE s A WA
LA AT — ME T AR Z KUK
| 22 90 4 Fol T £ i o

W oEENE+S A=+ —H > AHEH
AT B R Ss.e6fE (. FF LA - 4.61
fi5) > MEARA MR (& EAEEAN
A AOREAG M £ 2 LK) I A 11.32% (%
T 0 11.18%) © JiEh R ME > Tl
A IR BRCRE TV o W) By B AR O T I
B mEF R EMHEHREZ AT HES)
T AR 2 R B B s AR AR - AN R IROR A
WEfs PR EAAMILE FI o

BEAh - A £ E NI AT o] A B 2 R A0 R R
A\ AF BB W R R 2 W) SRR R
PH S 2 G A RIS (B R LA - ) o

B HGA

REEENEH A=+ —H > AL
AL C T (BT LA - ) o

Annual Report 2008 AEFEAEH | Rivera (Holdings) Limited JI|i4 AIRAF

10




Management Discussion and Analysis

& LN Wt i e 23 B

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated
in Renminbi, and the liabilities are well covered by the assets.
The management therefore expects that the change in value of
Renminbi will not have any adverse effect to the Group since
Renminbi has generally been perceived as having appreciation in
value relative to Hong Kong Dollars. On the other hand, all of the
other assets and liabilities of the Group are denominated in either
Hong Kong Dollars or Macau Pataca, hence, the Group does not

expect any significant exchange risk exposure.
Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no contingent liabilities at 31st December, 2008
(2007: Nil).

PROSPECT

The Group would maintain property development and investment
as well as securities trading and investment as its principal
activities. The Board has confidence in the Group’s prospect in
view of a strong net cash position of the Group and a promising
future development of the Mainland China, however, contribution
from property development and investment may be limited in 2009
as results of SZMP will be mainly attributable to rental income
from its office and commercial property projects until recognition
of any sale proceeds from Phase 3 of Zhangjiang Tomson Garden
upon completion in 2010. Fluctuation in the global financial
market may also exert pressure on the performance of the
securities trading and investment of the Group. The management
will be cautious when developing the business of the Group and
committing to any new projects in view of the uncertainty of the

global economic condition.

On the other hand, the Group will actively work with its joint
venture partner to explore the development potential of its
investment property in Macau and contemplate a feasible plan for

future development in due course.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group engaged less than 10 employees in its various offices
in Hong Kong, Macau and Shanghai as at 31st December, 2008
as the property development project of the Group in Shanghai has
completed. The total emoluments of the Group for the year under
review amounted to approximately HK$3.21 million including

retirement benefit scheme contributions.

The Group has always emphasized the importance of a highly-
efficient staff management and incentive structure. Emoluments
paid to salaried staff and directors of the Group are determined
by reference to market terms, individual responsibilities and
performance. In addition, the Company has adopted a share option
scheme pursuant to which directors and employees of the Group
are eligible for being granted options to subscribe for shares in the

capital of the Company as a long-term incentive.

Taking this opportunity, the Board would like to express its
gratitude to all the staff members of the Group for their dedication

and effort over the years.

On behalf of the Board
Liu Xiaolong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 3rd April, 2009
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Corporate Governance Report

e AR

“Board”) is

committed to maintaining good corporate governance standard and

The Board of Directors of the Company (the

procedures which emphasize a quality management, transparency

and accountability to all shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles and complied with the
code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) during the year 2008

except that:

(a) in contrast to the Code Provisions A.4.1 and A.4.2 of the
Code, the non-executive Directors (whether independent
or not) of the Company are not appointed for a specific
term and the Articles of Association of the Company do not
prescribe to have the Directors of the Company retired by
rotation at least once every three years, nevertheless, one-
third (or the nearest number to but not exceeding one-third)
of all the Directors of the Company for the time being shall
retire by rotation at every annual general meeting of the
Company and be eligible for re-election in accordance with

the Articles of Association of the Company; and

(b) the Company has not set up a remuneration committee
pursuant to the Code Provision B.1.1 of the Code as only
independent non-executive Directors of the Company are
entitled to fee and just one executive Director is remunerated.
The Board is responsible for reviewing and evaluating the
emoluments of the said Directors and those Directors or any
of their associates have not been involved in deciding their

own emoluments.

Rivera (Holdings) Limited NI AR A R | Annual Report 2008 AR FEARSR

ARAFERR(EFF L) BB R A
R T 9 R D B P A IR B R R

TSR

EIK AR

e 3RS

AL TUE % A R A
5255 BAT /A 7 G T BLRU (i

L) 1) Bh 8k 4 D iy a2 (4 364

6 W BRI

([aZCSF R 1) 2 Tt B 282 <7 A Bl < S
3C > METR U F BRAL -

(@)

(b)

B 52 (SF HI) ) 22 <7 R BR SCEB AL4.1 B8R
A4, 21*7?6’“2&3%2!&"*72#%1?%
F (N 8 L B ) B eds 2 AR B
2&“72@%%%&&% i EUDYI-EEY
HEANAEHT 2 DG = Figil
=0 MEMRBA LN R 2 A m A=
FEAR R ) Z B > TEAS > w8 IRs BT A 7
fEESEd > =2 — (BT
=y ) X R IHAE AR W) A JE
FOEAE R (AR o 3R] g
5 &

HAARAA R AR L AT EFZA
%ﬂ% HAEA — (08047 38 o5 8 950

M ER I MEeEhERRAR
””1‘?&5”?'1&7 7% 55 T 4 mCHAT A 1 2
NG 2 BB TR A G 2 &
BOAS 28 AR A AR SR RS HID 2 57 I

RS B 11 W 2 B oL — (5 2%
He o




Corporate Governance Report

e R gUE 8

THE BOARD

The Board is currently composed of nine members, including five
executive Directors, Mr Liu Xiaolong (Chairman), Madam Hsu
Feng, Mr Tong Albert, Mr Gu Yiwei and Madam Xu Mei; one
non-executive Director, Mr Sung Tze-Chun; and three independent
non-executive Directors, Mr Liang Jung-chi, Mr Zhang Hong Bin
and Mr Sit Hing Kwok. Biographical details of the Directors and
relevant relationships among them together with their respective
roles in the Board and its committees are set out in the Profile of

the Directors and Officers on pages 22 to 24.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company represent
one-third of the Board and one of them has the appropriate
professional accounting qualifications as required by the Listing
Rules. The Company has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors an annual written confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers all of the independent non-executive Directors to be

independent.

The Board has always acted in the best interests of the Company
and its subsidiaries (altogether the “Group”), and the shareholders.
The principal functions of the Board are to formulate strategy,
to consider and approve the Group’s major corporate matters, to
monitor and control significant operational and financial matters of
the Group. The non-executive Directors have contributed valuable
independent views and proposals for the Board’s deliberation and

decisions.
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The Board meets regularly throughout each year. The Company
Secretary assists the Chairman of the Board in setting the agenda
for regular Board meetings and all Directors are consulted to
include any matters in the agenda. Notice of at least 14 days is
given for any regular Board meeting and agenda together with
accompanying board papers are given to all Directors in a timely
manner before the date of meeting. Drafts and final versions
of minutes of the regular Board meetings are circulated to the
Directors for comment and record respectively within a reasonable
time after each meeting. During the year 2008, four regular
meetings were held by the Board and the Chairman of the Board
had an annual interchange with all the non-executive Directors
(including all the independent ones) of the Company without the

other executive Directors present.

The Board has established an executive committee and an audit
committee (collectively the “Committees”) with clear written
terms of reference to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs and to assist in sharing the Board’s responsibilities.
The Board, led by the Chairman, has reserved for its decision
or consideration matters covering corporate strategy, annual
and interim results, changes of members of the Board and the
Committees, major acquisitions, disposals and capital transactions,
and other significant operational and financial matters. The
Committees have to report regularly to the Board on their
decisions and recommendations. The management is responsible
for implementing the strategies and plans adopted by the Board

and the Committees.

All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major changes
that may affect the Group’s business, including relevant rules and
regulations. The Board has agreed on a procedure to enable the
Directors to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense, to assist them to

discharge their duties.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its Directors for their liabilities arising out of corporate

activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.
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Executive Committee

The Company did not appoint any chief executive officer but the
Board has established an executive committee (the “Executive
Committee”) with written terms of reference since August 2005
and the Chairman of the Board for the time being is not a member.
There is a segregation of duties between the responsibility of the
Chairman of the Board for leadership and management of the
Board and the responsibility of the Executive Committee to deal

with the day-to-day management of the Company’s business.

The Executive Committee is now composed of four executive
Directors of the Company, namely Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Tong
Albert, Mr Gu Yiwei and Madam Xu Mei. Madam Hsu Feng is the
chairman of the Executive Committee. Mr Lu Yihao has ceased
to be a member of the Executive Committee with effect from
28th August, 2008 upon resigning from executive Director of the
Company and Mr Gu Yiwei was appointed as a member of the

Executive Committee on the same day.

Audit Committee

An audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) was established
in April 1999 by the Board with written terms of reference.
The Audit Committee is composed of all the independent non-
executive Directors of the Company, namely Mr Liang Jung-chi,
Mr Zhang Hong Bin and Mr Sit Hing Kwok. Mr Zhang Hong Bin
who possesses appropriate professional accounting qualifications
as required by the Listing Rules is the chairman of the Audit

Committee.

Under its terms of reference, which have already been modified
to align with the recent amendments to the Code Provision
C.3.3 of the Code, the Audit Committee is required to review
the accounting policies and practices adopted by the Group, to
monitor integrity of the financial statements of the Company,
to evaluate the overall effectiveness of the internal control and
risk management frameworks of the Group and to oversee the
relationship with the Company’s auditor. The terms of reference of

the Audit Committee are available on the Company’s website.
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During the year 2008, the Audit Committee met three times to
discharge its duties by reviewing the interim and annual financial
statements as well as the audit matters of the Group, the internal
control system of the Group and the engagement of auditor of the
Company (the “Auditor”).

Attendance Records at Meetings o AGE W S

Rl EFERERE —FF)E =+ —
HEAF B NS AT 2 35 )R o & ok L3
ZEGEg@® BRI

The attendance of the individual Directors at the regular meetings
of the Board and the meetings of the Audit Committee held during

the year ended 31st December, 2008 is set out below:

Number of meetings

attended / held

TR BT R B H
Audit
Board Committee
o HHREHA
Executive Directors AT R
Mr Liu Xiaolong B/NHE S 4/4 N/A AN H
(Chairman of the Board) (FF g L)
Madam Hsu Feng G e 4/4 N/A RN H
Mr Lu Yihao B i 552 2/2 N/A A3
(resigned on 28th August, 2008) (PR ZZZFE/AE/NHA ZA/CH BHE)
Mr Tong Albert & IRl 414 N/A A
Mr Gu Yiwei IR 2/2 N/A A7
(appointed on 28th August, 2008) (R ZZFEFNENH Z AN HEZAT)
Madam Xu Mei i & 414 N/A A%
Non-Executive Director FPAT G
Mr Sung Tze-Chun N EEY 4/4 N/A AN H
Independent Non-Executive Directors Ji 3 JEL 47 # 9%
Mr Liang Jung-chi GREE LS 414 3/3
Mr Zhang Hong Bin TR A 414 3/3
(Chairman of Audir Commirtee) (FHBZAEE)
Mr Sit Hing Kwok P B [ 55 A 414 313
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

According to the Articles of Association of the Company, new
Directors could be elected by the Company or appointed by the
Board. Any Director so appointed by the Board shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting and the

retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election.

The Company has not set up a nomination committee pursuant
to recommended best practices of the Code and the Board is
responsible for reviewing its own structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience of its members),
and identifying, selecting and considering any appointment of its
own members and considering nomination of its retiring members
for re-election by the sharecholders in the general meetings. The
Board is also responsible for assessing the independence of the

independent non-executive Directors.

Every newly appointed Director will be given a comprehensive
orientation package, including the latest information of the Group,
induction into their responsibilities and duties and other related

regulatory requirements.

During 2008, a board meeting with an attendance of a majority of
the then Directors, namely Mr Liu Xiaolong, Madam Hsu Feng,
Mr Tong Albert, Madam Xu Mei, Mr Sung Tze-Chun, Mr Liang
Jung-chi, Mr Zhang Hong Bin and Mr Sit Hing Kwok, was held to
consider, accept and approve the changes of executive Director and

Executive Committee member.
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Remuneration of Directors

As disclosed above, no remuneration committee was set up.
Emoluments payable to the Directors of the Company are
determined by the Board with reference to market terms, individual
responsibilities and performance and subject to the authorization of
the shareholders of the Company in fixing the fee of the Directors.
In addition, the Company has adopted a share option scheme
pursuant to which the Directors of the Company are eligible for
being granted options to subscribe for shares in the capital of the

Company as a long-term incentive.

Details of the emoluments paid to the Directors of the Company
during 2008 are set out in Note 13(a) to the consolidated financial

statements on page 81.

The Board reviewed the remuneration policy of the Company and
discussed the emoluments payable to one executive Director and
three independent non-executive Directors of the Company at one
of its regular meetings held in 2008 which was attended by full
Board at that time, and interested Directors abstained from voting

on the relevant resolutions.

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted its own code of practice for securities
transactions by the Directors and the relevant employees (the “Code
of Practice”) on terms no less exacting than the required standard
of the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code”). In compliance with the recent amendments to
the requirements of the Model Code, the Code of Practice was

amended accordingly.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors of the Company,
each of whom has confirmed compliance with the required
standard set out in the Model Code and the Code of Practice

throughout the year.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for ensuring that a proper and effective
system of internal control is maintained within the Group in order
to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets.
The Company has adopted its own codes on internal control for
itself and its subsidiaries since 2005 in respect of all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions. The codes on internal control
are reviewed and modified regularly pursuant to operational

requirements of the Group.

The Board has authorized the Audit Committee to review the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system at least once
a year and the Audit Committee held a meeting in 2008 for that
purpose. The Board, through the review of the Audit Committee,
is satisfied that the Group has fully complied with all the applicable
provisions of the Group’s codes on internal control during the year
ended 31st December, 2008 and considers that the Group’s internal

control system effective and adequate.

Subsequent to the recent amendments to the Listing Rules, the
Board had considered the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting function, and their training programmes and budgets
at a regular meeting held in January 2009 and concluded that
the staffing of the accounting and financial reporting functions
of the Group was adequate and their training arrangements were

sufficient.
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Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for each financial period. In preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31st December, 2008, the
Directors have selected appropriate accounting policies and applied
them consistently; have made judgments and estimates that were
prudent and reasonable; and have prepared the financial statements

on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the Auditor to the shareholders are to form
an independent opinion, based on the audit, on those financial
statements and their opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2008 is
set out in the report of independent Auditor on pages 40 and 41.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The fees in respect of audit and non-audit services provided to
the Group by the Auditor for the year ended 31st December,
2008 amounted to approximately HK$1,010,000 and HK$43,000
respectively. The non-audit services provided during the year were

taxation services.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board maintains a continuing dialogue with the Company’s
shareholders through various channels including the Company’s
annual general meetings. Representatives of the Board including
the Chairman of the Board and chairman of the Audit Committee
attended the 2008 annual general meeting of the Company to

answer questions regarding the performance of the Group.

In order to further enhance communication with the shareholders
of the Company and enable the Company’s shareholders to have
a timely and updated information of the Group, the Company
has set up its own website at http://www.rivera.com.hk where the
corporate information, interim and annual reports, announcements,

circulars and other information of the Company are posted.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Liu Xiaolong, aged 52, has been appointed as an executive
Director of the Company and has been elected as Chairman of the
Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) since December
2005. He has also acted as a director of ¥ KiE E A R/AH
(Shanghai Boulevard Real Estate Co., Limited, “Boulevard Real
Estate”), a major subsidiary of the Company in Shanghai, since
January 2006.

Mr Liu is qualified as a Senior Engineer in the Mainland China.
He was also elected as a deputy to the 3rd National People’s
Congress of Pudong New Area of Shanghai City in December
2006.

He was the party secretary and the general manager of Shanghai
Waigaoqgiao Free Trade Zone Xin Development Co., Ltd. during
the period from November 2000 to October 2005. Mr Liu now acts
as the vice party secretary and the executive vice general manager
of Shanghai Zhangjiang (Group) Co., Ltd., one of the substantial
shareholders of the Company.

Mr Liu and Mr Gu Yiwei, an executive Director of the Company,
are respectively a director and the general manager of Shanghai
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park Development Co., Ltd. (“Zhangjiang Hi-
Tech”), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and one
of the substantial shareholders of the Company. Mr Liu also acts as
the president of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech.

Madam Hsu Feng, aged 58, has been appointed a director
of the Company since January 1990 and the chairman of the
Executive Committee of the Board since August 2005. She is
now an executive Director of the Company and a director of the
subsidiaries of the Company. She has over 10 years’ experience
in film production, and in property development and investment
as well as retail industry in Taiwan. She has been engaged in the
property development and leisure activities in the Mainland China
in recent years.

Madam Hsu is the mother of Mr Tong Albert, an executive
Director of the Company, and both of them are executive directors
of Tomson Group Limited (“TGL”), a listed company in Hong
Kong and a substantial sharcholder of the Company within the
meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”).
Madam Hsu also acts as the chairman and managing director of

TGL.

Besides, pursuant to the SFO, Madam Hsu together with her
parties acting in concert including, inter alia, Mr Tong Albert have
an interest in 779,274,488 shares in the capital of the Company.
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Mr Tong Albert, aged 26, has been appointed as an executive
Director of the Company and a director of a number of its
subsidiaries since March 2001. He has also been appointed as a
member of the Executive Committee of the Board since August
2005. He has been engaged in business development, corporate
management, property trading and securities trading in recent
years. He is a son of Madam Hsu Feng, an executive Director of
the Company, and both of them are executive directors of TGL.
Mr Tong also acts as the vice-chairman of TGL.

Besides, pursuant to the SFO, Mr Tong together with his parties
acting in concert including, inter alia, Madam Hsu Feng are taken
to have an interest in 779,274,488 shares in the capital of the
Company.

Mr Gu Yiwei, aged 44, has been appointed as an executive
Director of the Company, a member of the Executive Committee
of the Board and a director of Boulevard Real Estate since August
2008.

He is a certified public accountant in the Mainland China. He
has taken up various financial management posts in Siemens
Ltd., China, Shanghai Institute of Microsystem & Information
Technology of Chinese Academy of Sciences and KLA-Tencor
Corp.. From December 2006 up to August 2008, he acted as the
chief financial officer (China Region) of Sud-Chemie Corp.. He
has over 10 years’ experience in financial management.

Mr Gu and Mr Liu Xiaolong, the Chairman of the Board, are
respectively the general manager and a director of Zhangjiang Hi-
Tech, one of the substantial shareholders of the Company.

Madam Xu Mei, aged 54, has been appointed as an executive
Director of the Company since February 2005 and a member of
the Executive Committee of the Board since August 2005. She was
the section head of Personnel Department and a vice-researcher
of Shanghai Jiao Tong University. She has also acted as a vice-
president of Shanghai Sun Tong Technology Group Limited since
1996. She has extensive experience in management.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr Sung Tze-Chun, aged 58, has been appointed as a non-
executive Director of the Company since January 2006 and was
an executive director of the Company until December 2003. He
is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. He
has about 20 years’ experience in retail, property development
and marketing in Taiwan and has about 25 years’ experience in
aspects of financial analysis and management. He has taken part
in business development, corporate management and property
development in the Mainland China and Hong Kong. Mr Sung
now acts as a director of a company which provides consultancy
services on business and investment management, and is also a
consultant of TGL.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr Liang Jung-chi, aged 61, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since February 1994 and a
member of the Audit Committee of the Board since April 1999. He
is a physician in Taiwan.

Mr Zhang Hong Bin, aged 35, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company and the
chairman of the Audit Committee of the Board since April
2005. He is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of The Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and also has a lawyer’s qualification
in the Mainland China. He has years of experience in financial
management.

Mr Sit Hing Kwok, aged 60, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company and a member
of the Audit Committee of the Board since July 2007. He has been
engaged on supervisory job in journalism over 20 years. Mr Sit has
been a director of United Daily News Limited in Hong Kong since
1992 and is now a director of the Hong Kong news bureau of the
United Daily News Group.

OFFICERS

Ms Lee Yuen Han, aged 42, has joined the Group since 1991 and
was appointed the Company Secretary of the Company in March
1998.

Mr Kwok Sau King, aged 50, has joined the Group since 1990
and was appointed the Financial Controller of the Company in
September 1999.

TP

KWUHEAE > s8> H _ZEZANFE—HEE
BRI BARNFRZERGFEDS I8 AR
NBEZHTEEHE _FE=6+_H -
WA HEGERBG ARG - RIEATKE
BEZE - Y EEE TR Oy R
) T KL s NI AE BB o A S
T REA AR S o P R
BN KA R Y
R TAE - ROCEB B —RE L%
BEEMBARE AR ZEFR > WL HE
%@Z@Fﬂﬂ ©

WL I AT g

WAL > 150> B JLILHAE AR
BRI BARNFZ B ERTES - A
—JLILILAEDY A AT R 2 B
ZEHENE - AR HERLE -

BRI - 350K > A FF AR AR
BERAT AN R Z WS JF AT e R
JWE N 2 W B LR o RSB
NRRE AN 6 2 B E B b B
Al & 2 & 8 > B A B B A
W o PRA 2 A 2 BA RS BRALER -

BB - o0k > H - FEFLAELAR
WRAL A NF 2B RATER L #HH
JHiE T 2w Z AR A o S E
AR A o BESEAE A UL AR
HAEFBNBSRARAFZES > B
g 2R 2 T A A 0 P PO AT o

AT B

L o 428k > [ — UL
AR R — UL = R AT A
2 A AR o

PYBOBA - S05K > A JLILE AR N
AL LR — WIIAFE A R RA L
A2 B R

Annual Report 2008 AEBEAESR | Rivera (Holdings) Limited JI|i4 AIRAF




25

Report of the Directors

0 3 e WA

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is pleased to
present its Report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (altogether the
“Group”) for the year ended 31st December, 2008 and the report

of independent Auditor thereon.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group during the year were property
development and investment as well as securities trading and

investment.

During the year under review, the Company acted as an investment
holding company while the principal activities and other particulars
of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are listed out in Note 17 to

the consolidated financial statements on pages 87 and 88.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Details of the Group’s results and financial position for the year
ended 31st December, 2008 are set out on pages 42 to 100. An
analysis by geographical and business segments is set out in Note 8

to the consolidated financial statements on pages 72 to 76.

No interim dividend was paid during the year (2007: Nil).

The Board recommends a payment of a final dividend of HK$0.01
per share for the year ended 31st December, 2008 (2007: HK$0.02
per share) to shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Friday, 5th June, 2009 subject to the

shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 3rd June, 2009 to Friday, 5th June, 2009, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the

Company will be effected.

In order to qualify for the 2008 final dividend, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s share registrar, Tricor Secretaries
Limited at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:00 p.m. on Tuesday, 2nd

June, 2009 for registration.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Of the gross proceeds from operations and purchases of the Group
for the year, less than 30% was attributable to the Group’s five

largest customers and suppliers respectively.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31st December, 2008, the Group made a
charitable donation of approximately HK$1,138,000 for earthquake
in Sichuan in the People’s Republic of China.

FIXED ASSETS

During the year ended 31st December, 2008, the Group added
fixed assets amounting to approximately HK$28,000 and wrote off

assets with a zero aggregate net book value.

Movements in fixed assets of the Group and of the Company
during the year are shown in Note 16 to the consolidated financial

statements on pages 84 and 85.

A schedule of the principal properties held by the Group, for sale or

investment purposes, is set out on pages 101 and 102.
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BORROWINGS AND DEBENTURES

There were no bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at

31st December, 2008.

No debentures of any class were issued by the Company or any of

its subsidiaries, or were in issue, at any time during the year.

None of interest expenses of the Group were capitalised during the

year.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31st December, 2008, 2,608,546,511 ordinary shares of
HK$0.05 each in the capital of the Company were in issue and
the Company did not issue or repurchase any shares in its capital

during the year under review.

Details of the share capital of the Company are shown in Note 25

to the consolidated financial statements on page 93.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st December, 2008, there was no
purchase, sale or redemption by the Company, or any of its

subsidiaries, of the Company’s listed securities.

RESERVES

The distributable reserves of the Company as at 31st December,
2008 amounted to approximately HK$281,661,000 (2007:
HK$197,224,000).

Movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company during
the year are shown in Note 26 to the consolidated financial

statements on pages 94 to 96.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and financial position of the Group for

the preceding five financial years is set out on pages 106 and 107.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company as at the date of this Report and

those who were in office during the year are:
Name of Directors
Executive Directors

Mr Liu Xiaolong (Chairman)
Madam Hsu Feng

Mr Lu Yihao (resigned on 28th August, 2008)
Mr Tong Albert
Mr Gu Yiwei (appointed on 28th August, 2008)

Madam Xu Mei

Non-Executive Director
Mr Sung Tze-Chun

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr Liang Jung-chi

Mr Zhang Hong Bin

Mr Sit Hing Kwok

A profile of the existing Directors of the Company is shown on

pages 22 to 24.

Information relating to emoluments paid to the Company’s
Directors during the year is set out in Note 13(a) to the

consolidated financial statements on page 81.
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Pursuant to Article 73 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr Gu Yiwei, being an executive Director appointed by the Board
in August 2008, shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company after his appointment and
will therefore retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting of

the Company. Being eligible, he offers himself for re-election.

All Directors of the Company, including the non-executive
Directors (no matter independent or not), are subject to retirement
by rotation at annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association. Articles 77
to 79 provide that at each annual general meeting, one-third (or
the nearest number to but not exceeding one-third) of the Directors
of the Company for the time being shall retire from office and
the Directors to retire in every year shall be those who have been
longest in office since their last election and shall be eligible for
re-election. In this connection, Mr Tong Albert and Mr Liang
Jung-chi will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer themselves for

re-election.

The re-election of the retiring Directors of the Company is
subject to the sharcholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company and details of those Directors
will be disclosed in a circular of the Company to be despatched
to the shareholders together with the notice of the annual general

meeting.

None of the Directors of the Company proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting have an unexpired service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the employing company within one year without

payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31st December, 2008, the interests and short positions of the
Directors of the Company in shares, debentures and underlying
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO”)), which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein (including
interests and short positions which they were taken to have under
Section 344 of the SFO) or which were required to be notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were as

follows:
(1) The Company:

Shares of HK$0.05 each

WAt A BR AT

REEENEF A=t —H - ARAK
AR A ) CHAT AR Ik (R CRE O
BB B Ao A5 ) 565 XV B 2 E S i B ) 2 ety
TEUHERE S A I8 B 15 v A ZE0 0 B R 7 e 3
WA 5 352 Mk 2 B2 R A 5% M 49 P At
9 T A (L A AR R R o S U B e 1) o5
344 R WAL B AT IO ME 48 BORE ) - BRI
TR 7 s W 5 5 2 I A PR W) (1 g 52 P 1) G
g7 LRI (TCETT LI 1) 22 B i A
O F) A T 2 M SR

(1) ARZAN :

A5 B i fE 0.05 #5702 B

Number of shares of the Company

AR/ Z B H

Personal Family Corporate Other

Interests Interests Interests Interests
Name of Directors HRH WAKERE  KBHELR VgL oAb b 2%
Mr Liu Xiaolong BI/NEESE A Nil 4 Nil 4 Nil # (4) Nil 4%
Madam Hsu Feng (B) & #%& 4L (B) 317,178,162 Nil % 255,676,326 (C), (D) 206,420,000 (E)
Mr Tong Albert (B) % TR A (B) Nil 4 Nil 4 Nil 4 779,274,488 (E)
Mr Gu Yiwei e ST Nil 4% Nil 4 Nil & (4) Nil 4
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(2) The

Company’s associated corporation:

Shanghai Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Port Co. Ltd.
(“SZMP”)
Registered capital

(2) ARAFAZAHBEEM

Rl T AT R 2 ]
(M THEA )
kI AR

Amount of registered capital of SZMP

PE T A n) Z i A A
Personal Family Corporate Other
Interests Interests Interests Interests
Name of Directors RS PARERE KEHER AR HAbHER:
Mr Liu Xiaolong Bl/INGE S Nil Nil Nil % (F) Nil 4
Madam Hsu Feng (B) r M &+ (B) Nil Nil 48 RMB50,000,000 (C), (G) Nil 4
Mr Tong Albert (B) i T RYeH (B) Nil 4 Nil 4 Nil ¥ (G) Nil 4
Mr Gu Yiwei HBIEAREIE Nil fi Nil 4 Nil 4 (F) Nil

Notes:

A)

(B)

©

(D)

As at 31st December, 2008, a total of 779,955,407 shares
of the Company were beneficially held by Best Central
Developments Limited (“Best Central”), of which Mr Gu
Yiwei was a director. Best Central was a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Shanghai Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park Development
Co., Ltd. (“Zhangjiang Hi-Tech”), of which Mr Liu Xiaolong

was a director.

Mr Tong Albert is a son of Madam Hsu Feng.

As at 31st December, 2008, Madam Hsu Feng was entitled to
control the exercise of more than one-third of voting power at

general meetings of Tomson Group Limited (“TGL”).

A total of 255,676,326 shares were beneficially held by
Cosmos Success Development Limited (“Cosmos Success”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of TGL, hence, Madam Hsu Feng
was deemed to have a corporate interest in the capital of the

Company.
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(E)  Madam Hsu Feng has entered into agreements and deeds with
her sons, Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles and Mr Tong Albert, to
sell to each of them 103,210,000 shares of the Company, in
an aggregate of 206,420,000 shares, subject to a security in
favour of Madam Hsu for their performance of the duties
under the aforesaid agreements. Pursuant to the SFO,
Madam Hsu was taken to have a security interest in those
206,420,000 shares of the Company.

Subject to the aforesaid agreements and deeds and pursuant
to the SFO, Madam Hsu Feng held and was deemed to hold
an interest in a total of 779,274,488 shares of the Company
and Mr Tong Albert was therefore taken to have an interest in
those 779,274,488 shares of the Company by virtue of being a
person acting in concert with Madam Hsu Feng.

(F) As at 31st December, 2008, Zhangjiang Hi-Tech held an
interest of RMB183.55 million (being 49.5%) in the registered
capital of SZMP. Mr Liu Xiaolong and Mr Gu Yiwei were
the director and the general manager of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech

respectively.

(G) TGL held an interest of RMB50 million (being 13.5%) in
the registered capital of SZMP through its wholly-owned
subsidiary. Madam Hsu Feng was therefore deemed to have a
corporate interest in the registered capital of SZMP.

Mr Tong Albert was a director and a shareholder of TGL.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors of the
Company and their associates had any interests or short
positions in the shares or debentures or underlying shares
of the Company or any of its associated corporations as at
31st December, 2008, which were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein (including interests or short positions which they
were taken to have under Section 344 of the SFO) or which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on
29th May, 2002 and under the Scheme, there were no options
granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year ended
31st December, 2008, nor was there any option outstanding at
the beginning or at the end of the year. Apart from the Scheme,
at no time during the year nor at the end of the year ended 31st
December, 2008, was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or

debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

The major terms of the Scheme are as follows:

Purpose
The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards to
selected persons for their contribution to the Group or any entity

in which the Group holds any equity interest (“Invested Entity”).

Participants

The participants of the Scheme include:

(i) any employee or proposed employee (whether full time or
part time) of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity, including any executive director of any member of the

Group or any Invested Entity; or

(ii) any non-executive director (including independent non-
executive director) of any member of the Group or any

Invested Entity; or

(iii) any customer and supplier of goods or services to any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity who has contributed to

the Group; or

(iv) any adviser or consultant of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity who provides business advice and business
consultancy service to any member of the Group or any

Invested Entity; or
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(v)  any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member

of the Group or any Invested Entity.

Maximum number of shares available for issue

The maximum number of shares of the Company in respect of
which options may be granted under the Scheme must not exceed
160,854,651 shares, being 6.2% of the total number of shares
of the Company in issue as at the date of this Report, unless

shareholders’ approval of the Company has been obtained.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares of the Company issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted and to be granted to
each participant (including exercised and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed
1% of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of grant
(the “Individual Limit”). If any further grant of options to a
participant would result in the shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options granted and to be granted in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such further grant in excess
of the Individual Limit, such further grant must be subject to
shareholders” approval in general meeting with such participant and

his or her associates abstaining from voting.

Exercise period of options
An option may be exercised at any time during a period as the
Board may determine which shall not be more than 10 years

commencing from the date of grant of the option.

Minimum holding period of an option before
exercise

Save as determined by the Board and provided in the offer of the
relevant options, there is no minimum period for which an option

must be held before it can be exercised.
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Acceptance of an option

The acceptance of an offer of granting an option must be made
within 28 days from the date on which such offer is made with
a non-refundable payment of HK$1 from the grantee to the

Company by way of a consideration for the grant thereof.

Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price of a share of the Company in respect of any
option granted under the Scheme shall be such price as the Board
in its absolute discretion shall determine, save that such price will

not be less than the highest of:

(i)  the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant of the

option, which must be a business day;

(if)  the average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the 5 business
days immediately preceding the date of grant of the option;

and
(iii) the nominal value of the shares on the date of grant.

Remaining life of the Scheme

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general meeting
or by the Board, the Scheme shall be valid and effective till 28th
May, 2012. After the expiry of such valid period, no further
options will be granted but in all other respects the provisions of

the Scheme shall remain in full force and effect.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

The Group is principally engaged in property development and
investment in Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Pudong, Shanghai (the
“Park”), hence, the following Directors of the Company are
considered to have interests in business which may compete or

is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the said
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business of the Group, other than that business where the Directors
have been appointed/were appointed as directors to represent
the interests of the Company and/or the Group, pursuant to the

Listing Rules:

(i)  Mr Liu Xiaolong is both the president and director of
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech while Mr Gu Yiwei is the general
manager of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech. Both of Mr Liu and Mr Gu
are also directors of Shanghai Z.J. Hi-Tech Park Property
Co., Ltd. (“Z.]. Property”). One of the major business of
these two companies is property development and investment
in the Park.

(i) Madam Hsu Feng and Mr Tong Albert are chairman and
vice-chairman of board of directors of TGL respectively
whereas they are both taken to be substantial shareholders
of TGL. One of the principal business of TGL and its
subsidiaries has been property development and investment in

Shanghai, in particular Pudong, for years.

The business of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech, Z.J. Property and TGL
(altogether the “Potential Competitors”) in the property sector
in Pudong (the “Excluded Business”) may potentially compete
with the Group’s business. Zhangjiang Hi-Tech is a listed
company in Shanghai whereas Z.J. Property is a subsidiary of
Shanghai Zhangjiang (Group) Co., Ltd., a state owned enterprise
in Shanghai and the holding Company of Zhangjiang Hi-Tech.
TGL is a listed company in Hong Kong. The Excluded Business
is managed by independent management and administration
of the Potential Competitors respectively. Besides, the Board is
independent of the boards of directors of the Potential Competitors
and the independent non-executive Directors of the Company
would assist in monitoring the operation of the Group, the Group
is therefore capable of carrying on its business independently of,

and at an arm’s length from, the Excluded Business.

SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31st
December, 2008.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts for the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of any business of the Company were
entered into or subsisted during the year ended 31st December,
2008.

PENSION SCHEMES

The Company participates in a pension scheme, which was
registered under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (the “MPF Ordinance”), for all its employees in Hong
Kong. The scheme is a defined contribution scheme effective from
November 2002 and is funded by contributions from employer
and employees according to the provisions of the MPF Ordinance.
Should there be the employer’s voluntary contributions to the
scheme, forfeited contributions in this nature can be applied to
reduce the amount of future voluntary contributions payable by the

employer.

On the other hand, the employees of the Group in the Mainland
China are members of respective state-managed defined contribution
retirement benefits schemes operated by the local government. The
employer and the employees are obliged to make contributions at a

certain percentage of the payroll under rules of the schemes.

During the year under review, the total amount contributed by
the Group to the above schemes and charged to the consolidated
income statement amounted to approximately HK$86,000 (2007:
HK$126,000) and no contributions were forfeited.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS

As at 31st December, 2008, the following shareholders (other
than the Directors of the Company) were interested, directly or

indirectly, in 5% or more of the total issued share capital and
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underlying shares of the Company and those interests were required

ERORESR > T A% 55 HE £ ZE R IRCRE O ) B

to be recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 T 191 ) 555 336 Mk 2 B Bk 2 T M AE 28
of the SFO: Rt A
Number of shares held
(proportion to the
total issued share capital)
P ety 8 H
(i
Name of substantial shareholders FEBOR W AR ZH 5 IE)
Shanghai Zhangjiang (Group) Co., Ltd. bRV (SR ) A BRA A 779,955,407 (29.90%)
(“Zhangjiang Group”) (2) (MBRYTEERE D) (@)
Shanghai Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park Development R VL R [ I B A 1y 779,955,407 (29.90%)
Co., Ltd. (“Zhangjiang Hi-Tech”) (2) AR A (RVLEEA D) (@)
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles (4) i FECHE ) 779,274,488 (29.87%)

Tomson Group Limited (“TGL”) (¢)

Notes:

(@)

(b)

()

The references to 779,955,407 shares were related to the same block
of shares in the capital of the Company which was beneficially
held by Best Central. Best Central was a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Shanghai (Z.J.) Hi-Tech Park Limited (“Shanghai (Z.]J.)”)
which was in turn wholly owned by Zhangjiang Hi-Tech in which
Zhangjiang Group held more than 50% interest. Therefore, Best
Central, Shanghai (Z.]J.), Zhangjiang Hi-Tech and Zhangjiang
Group were interested or were taken to be interested in those shares

pursuant to the SFO.

The said 779,274,488 shares were referred to the same block of
shares in the capital of the Company in which Madam Hsu Feng
and Mr Tong Albert were interested or taken to be interested, as
disclosed in the above paragraph headed “Directors’ Interests and

Short Positions in Securities” in this Report.

The 255,676,326 shares were beneficially held by Cosmos Success.
Cosmos Success was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hoffman
Enterprises Corp. (“Hoffman”) which was in turn wholly owned
by Tomson Corporation in which TGL held the entire interest.
Therefore, Cosmos Success, Hoffman, Tomson Corporation and
TGL were interested or were taken to be interested in those shares

pursuant to the SFO.

GEEBARAR ([HELEER]D () 255,676,326  (9.80%)

()  REITR K2 779,955,407 BAR TI R AR 22
AR AR 2 A — A o 5% 5 R D Best
Central # fi #E77 ° Best Central /¥ Shanghai
(Z.J.) Hi-Tech Park Limited(’—Shanghai
(ZJ) D)z &G M A E > A& F R
B fy 4 B A > AR VLA R R A SR VLR
£y 1 #50% fE 45 o I > Best Central »
Shanghai (Z.].) ~ SRILBA Bl TLAE AR B
(R 5 B BG40 ) A sl o A s A 7% 5
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The aforesaid shares constituted a part of the total interests of
Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Tong Albert and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles
in the capital of the Company as disclosed in the above paragraph
headed “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Securities” in

this Report and in this paragraph respectively.

Save for the above interests, the Directors of the Company are not
aware of any person (other than the Directors of the Company)
who had, directly or indirectly, interests or short positions in the
total issued share capital and the underlying shares of the Company
and those interests or short positions were required to be recorded
in the register kept under Section 336 of the SFO as at 31st
December, 2008.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this Report,
the Company maintains a sufficient public float as prescribed by

the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
have been audited by Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who were
the Auditor of the Company for the preceding three financial

years.

They will retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
Tong Albert

Director

Hong Kong, 3rd April, 2009
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Report of Independent Auditor
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Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF RIVERA

(HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Rivera
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 42 to 100,
which comprise the consolidated and Company balance sheets as
at 31st December, 2008, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of recognised income and expense and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making

accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued

by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
as to whether the consolidated financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31st December, 2008 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in

accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
3rd April, 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement

A5 4 AR

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE EZ/FE+_H=1—HI4FE

2008 2007
ZRENAE ZERELA
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E T T
Gross proceeds from operations KE A% 25 AEAH 7 29,114 490,182
Revenue A 7 3,178 447,824
Cost of sales B A (2,331) (203,699)
Gross profit EH 847 244,125
Dividends from available-for-sale Ak A
investments B E A 8,773 —
Other income BERT N 9 11,900 11,758
Other expenses FHoAth S HY 10 (7,984) —
Selling expenses By H (2,619) (32,694)
Administrative expenses FTHE H (8,496) (6,743)
Net (loss) gain in held-for-trading FrERE (1R I
investments AR (17,997) 6,308
(15,576) 222,754
Share of results of an associate A\ e\ W) SE 4 49,248 82,792
Profit before taxation 4B BT %65 A 33,672 305,546
Taxation i TH 11 441 (75,714)
Profit for the year A JE i | 12 34,113 229,832
Attributable to: SrBCUNTR
Equity holders of the Company AN A ROR 34,202 220,803
Minority interests D BB i (89) 9,029
34,113 229,832
Earnings per share (HK cents) R B CHEAL) 15
— Basic — FR 1.31 8.46
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At 31st December, 2008 A _EE/N\F+_H=1—H

2008 2007
—BRAE  —ERLE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
! T#L T
Non-current Assets R o s
Property, plant and equipment W2 ~ RE Mkt 16 401 422
Investment property K&y £ 18 28,563 28,563
Interest in an associate T B N ) 2 M g 19 317,870 334,506
Available-for-sale investments Tl it A & 20 231,275 478,501
578,109 841,992
Current Assets B
Properties held for sale Y 20,360 21,148
Held-for-trading investments FeERE 21 16,643 32,774
Trade and other receivables and HENE 5 Bk ~ Hofth BE i
prepayments HE 3 K YR A R T8 22 7,599 14,823
Cash and bank balances 4 K SRAT 45 Bk 23 679,336 639,703
723,938 708,448
Current Liabilities b RER
Trade and other payables JEAS 52 T Bk S HiA
JREASF B K 24, 27(b) 42,396 61,116
Receipts in advance TE U K IE — 8
Taxation payable At B E 85,496 92,680
127,892 153,804
Net Current Assets U 596,046 554,644
Total Assets less Current Liabilities H0% 7 W B A 1,174,155 1,396,636
Capital and Reserves B AN B il A
Share capital Jie A 25 130,427 130,427
Reserves A 26 1,019,097 1,245,004
Equity attributable to equity holders AR A PSR A HE A
of the Company 1,149,524 1,375,431
Minority interests DB R £ 26 22,431 21,205
Total Equity HapE 2% 1,171,955 1,396,636
Non-Current Liability U By £ 4%
Deferred tax liabilities A 90T JE B 15 28 2,200 —
1,174,155 1,396,636
The consolidated financial statements on pages 42 to 100 were N4 B 100 B Z 45 5B HED R

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 3rd

“ETAAFNA = HEE R R IR T

April, 2009. #E o
Liu Xiaolong Tong Albert
S/ BTH
Chairman Director
FE HH
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At 31st December, 2008 A _EE/N\F+_H=1—H

2008 2007
“RBAE  CEELE
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
iz T#L Tt

Non-Current Assets R B e
Property, plant and equipment LE S 16 — —
Investments in subsidiaries AR A 7 2 & 17 1,800 1,800
1,800 1,800

Current Assets W)
Other receivables and prepayments At R A R 2k I FELAS kTR 453 365
Amounts due from subsidiaries qu&w%/\jT 'H 17 608,435 560,363
Cash and bank balances 4 MR AT 45 B 23 116,625 80,396
725,513 641,124
Current Liabilities b RER

Other payables and accruals At JRE A5 HE 2 &J?EﬁL X IE 770 811
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEASH B B 4 ) O 17 2,638 2,645
3,408 3,456
Net Current Assets U B R 722,105 637,668
Total Assets less Current Liabilities H% 7 W A 723,905 639,468

Capital and Reserves A Bl
Share capital Jie A 25 130,427 130,427
Reserves I 26 593,478 509,041
Total Equity BUpE R 723,905 639,468

The consolidated financial statements on pages 42 to 100 were

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 3rd

April, 2009.

Liu Xiaolong

/e
Chairman

E3

HRFLELI00EZ 5 MBEHRED R

TERBIFD A = H O R T
B o

Tong Albert
BT

Director

HF
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Consolidated Statement of Recognised Income and Expense

A o WS W B 3R

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 #k £ _%

BT A=t I

2008 2007
“RENAE “EELA
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#L THTT
(Loss) gain on change in fair value of available- ] {3 i B 4% &5/ ~F-{E 2 ) Ry
for-sale investments EAEZ (EE) ki (247,226) 151,525
Exchange differences arising from translation B R E AR 2 B L2 20,325 19,495
Share of net reserve movements of an associate  JEAG I /\ ) fif fi 55 Bl 2 5 4H 20,278 20,246
Net (expenses) income recognised directly B A R 25 2 T
in equity (BAZ) W A (206,623) 191,266
Profit for the year A B Ui ] 34,113 229,832
Total recognised (expense) income for the year — 4F [N B\ il 2 48 (B 32) e A (172,510) 421,098
Attributable to: SECANE
Equity holders of the Company AN TR (173,736) 410,808
Minority interests DR R A 1,226 10,290
(172,510) 421,098
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

i Bl R

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 #k £ _%

FNEFZ A=+ —HILEE

2008 2007
ZRENAE CEELE
HK$’°000 HK$’000
T#IT T#on
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BB
Profit before taxation A0 AT Y A 33,672 305,546
Adjustments for: KPR R
Interest income FlE WA (11,125) (11,173)
Dividends from available-for-sale investments AR B RE 2 B B A (8,773) —
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #13£ ~ W75 K s oir 84 57 59
Loss (gain) on change in fair value R ERE N EE) R
of held-for-trading investments A 2 R (AR 20,615 (621)
Share of results of an associate JREA B 5 s ) S A (49,248) (82,792)
Operating cash flows before movements in W A S A A
working capital HEens (14,802) 211,019
Decrease in properties held for sale HEY 2R D 1,934 205,240
Increase in held-for-trading investments HFER &N (4,484) (26,507)
Decrease in trade and other receivables and JEWE 5 IR~ Hot el
prepayments MK B T A 308 2 ek 7,612 12,860
Decrease in trade and other payables JEAT R 5 Bk S L Ath A
MK D (21,877) (44,833)
Decrease in receipts in advance T AL K T P D (8) (253)
Cash (used in) generated from operations () 2 B 48 ih 8 2 Bl 4 (31,625) 357,526
Income taxes paid =X REY (10,211) (49,176)
NET CASH (USED IN) GENERATED (HR)RABBEEZ
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Bl & (41,836) 308,350
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEHD
Dividends received from an associate B U 8 7 2 B B R A 86,162 75,492
Interest received 2 A S 10,989 10,979
Dividends received from available-for-sale B ] it R 2 BRI A
investments 8,773 —
Purchase of property, plant and equipment WEE Y ~ R S (28) (16)
NET CASH FROM INVESTING B A 2 B4
ACTIVITIES 105,896 86,455
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BeBlaguk

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 wE_ZZ)\F+_HA=+—HILFEE

2008 2007
“EENE ZEELF
HK$’000 HK$°000
TH#L T#HIT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES A )

Dividends paid EAE (52,171) (52,171)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders AT D BB R 2 I R — (3,183)
CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES ¥ ¥% 8 i il 2 Bl & (52,171) (55,354)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND BERBESMHEH

CASH EQUIVALENTS B4 Im -8 11,889 339,451
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1ST —H—HZB &K%

JANUARY B H 639,703 289,749
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes UNTRIES LY P A 27,744 10,503
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT TH=Z1T—HZBER

31ST DECEMBER, Be&%HEH »

represented by cash and bank balances BB 4 K SRAT 46 Bk 679,336 639,703
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 1 W 05 i B i

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 #{ % —ZFZX/\4E+H =+ —H L4

1.

D2

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in
Hong Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address
of its registered office and principal place of business is
Rooms 1501-2 and 1507-12, 15th Floor, Wing On Centre,
111 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) are investment holding, property development

and investment, and securities trading and investment.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments and interpretations (“new HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) which are or have become effective:

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7 Reclassification of Financial Assets
(Amendment)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2: Group and Treasury Share

Transactions

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding

Requirements and their Interaction

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect
on how the results and financial position for the current or
prior accounting periods have been prepared and presented.

Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been required.

1.

— R

AN E] B — IR B R RS 2 AR
AR B0y A us B 5 28 5 i
HRRAF(THAS ) LT - AANFZ
e M I B o 2 B 2 ik 2
FETHED 11198 K 22015
1501-2 2 1507-12 % -

AR w RHEME AR (AL 2 E
THS ICE R - MR N
s H B RBE -

M JE W T B A4 7 8 A
53 e 1))

A - AL C RM LT b il
RIS g LR AN AR o 3]
B B ([ 2 A il i e Al )

(FEETHENDF 9  SHEEZENIH
T v B s e )

BT (BTA)

it (BUPR BT R A (BT R AL
EARBZES) P RELER
— R fBE 1% M h2 5

it (PR B 7 R IR a2 o
BARRZRY)

—RBE 1%

Fits (BB BT R A (TS 195
BARRZES) — REfREEZ
— R 145 Wil RIEESERR

K e

PR A 8 S s o o RS A )
] Bt 1 w30 ) 2 SE A BB R DL
Z i il K 2 5 J5 2SI RO
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A W 5 A Mk i

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 wE_ZZ)\F+_HA=+—HILFEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

2. MERIWT B s vk (A v W
B ) )

STANDARDS (“HKFRS”) (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and

revised standards, amendments or interpretations that have

been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 & 1

(Amendments)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKEFRS 1 & HKAS 27
(Amendment)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
HKFRS 3 (Revised)
HKFRS 7 (Amendment)
HKERS 8
HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 &
HKAS 39
(Amendments)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 13
HK(IFRIC)-Int 15
HK(IFRIC)-Int 16

HK(IFRIC)-Int 17

HK(IFRIC)-Int 18

1
Improvements to HKFRSs
. o o 2
Presentation of Financial Statements
. 2
Borrowing Costs

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements’
Puttable Financial Instruments and

Obligations Arising on Liquidation®
Eligible Hedged Items’

Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,

Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate’
. - . 2
Vesting Conditions and Cancellations
Business Combinations’

Improving Disclosures about Financial
Instruments’

Operating Segments”

Embedded Derivatives’

Customer Loyalty Programmes*

Agreements for the Construction of
Real Estate’

Hedges of a Net Investment in a
Foreign Operation’

Distribution of Non-cash Assets to
Owners’

6
Transfers of Assets from Customers
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A Y 5 A M i

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HE_ZZ)F+ A=+ —HILFEE

Dh

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS”) (Continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2009 except the amendments to HKFRS 5, effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July,
2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July,
2008

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist
October, 2008

Effective for transfers on or after 1st July, 2009

Effective for annual periods ending on or after 30th June,

2009

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the
Group’s accounting for business combination for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the Group’s
annual reporting period beginning on or after Ist January,
2010. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting
treatment for changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary. The Directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of these new and revised standards, amendments
or interpretations will have no material impact on the results

and the financial position of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values, as explained

in the accounting policies set out below.

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A W 5 A Mk i

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 wE_ZZ)\F+_HA=+—HILFEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRS issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where
the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from

its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of

disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All significant inter-group transactions, balances, income and

expenses are eliminated on consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A Y 5 A M i

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HE_ZZ)F+ A=+ —HILFEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group’s equity
therein. Minority interests in the net assets consist of the
amount of those interests at the date of the original business
combination and the minority’s share of changes in equity
since the date of the combination. Losses applicable to the
minority in excess of the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s
equity are allocated against the interests of the Group except
to the extent that the minority has a binding obligation and

is able to make an additional investment to cover the losses.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s

balance sheet at cost less any identified impairment loss.
Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an

interest in a joint venture.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in associates are carried in the consolidated
balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes
in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate, less any
identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses
of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate,
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
An additional share of losses is provided for and a liability
is recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payment on behalf
of that associate. Where a group entity transacts with an
associate of the Group, profits and losses are eliminated to

the extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A W 5 A Mk i

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 wE_ZZ)\F+_HA=+—HILFEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the balance sheet when a group entity becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised

immediately in the consolidated income statement.
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the
three categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where

appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for

debt instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A Y 5 A M i

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HE_ZZ)F+ A=+ —HILFEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss includes
financial assets held for trading. The Group classified certain
financial assets as held-for-trading investments as they have
been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the

near future.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised
directly in the consolidated income statement in the period
in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in the
consolidated income statement includes any dividend or

interest earned on the financial assets.
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
and other receivables, bank balances and amounts due from
subsidiaries) are carried at amortised cost using the effective

interest method, less any identified impairment losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss or loans and receivables. At each
balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, available-
for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value. Changes
in fair value are recognised in equity, until the financial asset
is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity
is removed from equity and recognised in the consolidated

income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A W 5 A Mk i

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 wE_ZZ)\F+_HA=+—HILFEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. BEEFHEOR )

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit
or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each
balance sheet date. Financial assets are impaired where there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that accrued after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets

have been affected.

A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
an available-for-sale equity investment below its cost is

considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For other receivables, assets that are assessed not to
be impaired individually are subsequently assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, significant
financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
borrower being probable to enter bankruptcy or financial re-
organisation, servable changes in national or local economic

conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated income statement when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash

flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A Y 5 A M i

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HE—

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will

not be reversed in subsequent periods.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recongised impairment loss is reversed through
consolidated income statement to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had

the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed in consolidated income statement in
subsequent periods. Any increase in fair value subsequent to

impairment loss is recognised directly in equity.
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of

a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are classified into

other financial liabilities.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 wE_ZZ)\F+_HA=+—HILFEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments through the expected life of the financial

liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.
Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and
amounts due to subsidiaries are subsequently measured at

amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at

the proceeds received net of direct issue costs.
Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in the

consolidated income statement.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in the consolidated income

statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A Y 5 A M i

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HE—

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is

recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised as income immediately.
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held for capital

appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is charged
so as to write off the cost of investment properties using the
straight-line method. No depreciation is provided in respect

of freehold land.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits is expected from its
disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the consolidated income statement in the year in which the

item is derecognised.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 wE_ZZ)\F+_HA=+—HILFEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than freehold land are
stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment losses.

Buildings on freehold land are depreciated over 40 years by

equal annual installments.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives and after taking into account their estimated residual
value, using the straight-line method, at the following rates

per annum:

Furniture and equipment 10% to 20%

Motor vehicle 18%

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item) is included in the
consolidated income statement in the year in which the item

is derecognised.
Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost or

estimated net realisable value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HE_ZZ)F+ A=+ —HILFEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for

goods sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts.

When properties are developed for sale, income is recognised
only when the sale agreement is unconditional or when
the relevant building occupation permit is issued by the
relevant building authorities, whichever is the later and
when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
properties are transferred to purchasers. Payments received
from purchasers prior to this stage are recorded as receipts in

advance under current liabilities.

Interest income from a financial asset excluding financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying

amount.

Dividend income from investments excluding financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss is recognised when the

Group’s rights to receive payment have been established.

Revenue from sales of held-for-trading investments is

recognised when the sales contract has become unconditional.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 wE_ZZ)\F+_HA=+—HILFEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in its functional currency at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each balance
sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical

cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in the consolidated income statement in the
period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in the consolidated income statement of the
period except for differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised directly in equity, in which cases, the exchange

differences are also recognised directly in equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised as a separate component of equity (foreign
currency translation reserve). Such exchange differences are
recognised in the consolidated income statement in the period

in which the foreign operation is disposed of.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A Y 5 A M i

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HE—

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation

Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently payable and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated income statement because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years, and it further excludes income statement items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of the other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable

profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associate, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available

to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 wE_ZZ)\F+_HA=+—HILFEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the
consolidated income statement, except when it relates to
items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the

deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.
Retirement benefits schemes

Contributions payable by the Group to its defined
contribution retirement benefits schemes are charged as an
expense to the consolidated income statement when employees

have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the Directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results

may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current

and future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HE_ZZ)F+ A=+ —HILFEE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

The critical accounting judgment and key source of
estimation uncertainty that can significantly affect the
amounts recognised in the financial information in the next

financial year are disclosed as follows:
Available-for-sale investments

The Group determines that available-for-sale investments
are impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value below its cost. The Group takes
into account of the magnitude of the change in share prices
to determine whether the available-for-sale investments are
impaired. Since the accumulated decrease in the share price
below its cost is not significant, the Group considered there is

no impairment for the available-for-sale investments.
Valuation of properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are valued at the lower of cost or
net realisable value. Net realisable value is determined by
reference to Directors’ estimates based on the prevailing
market condition. The Group has properties held for sale in
Shanghai and Macau, which exposes the Group to certain
price risk. Management is optimistic about the prospect of
the Group’s investment in the property sector and it has been
cautious in formulating and reviewing regularly the Group’s

business plan.
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.
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5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, reserves and retained earnings as

disclosed in notes 25 and 26 respectively.

The Directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically by considering the cost of capital and the risks
associates with each class of capital. When necessary, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issue and share buy-backs as

well as the issue of new debt.
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

5. RO KRR A )
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6. W H
(a) Z@T B

The Group The Company
AZH AR
2008 2007 2008 2007

ZRFNE T ERF ZRFRAE TR
HK$’000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS$°000

T T T#L Tt

Financial assets VB e
Fair value through profit or loss  #&%/AF-{EHFF A

held-for-trading investments Bz 2 FERE 16,643 32,774 — —
Loans and receivables (including B % R R X
cash and cash equivalents) (5B 4 KB4
SEIEH) 686,502 654,140 725,137 640,825
Available-for-sale investments it E R E 231,275 478,501 — —
Financial liabilities s B 1E
Amortised cost HESH LA 33,214 51,920 2,638 2,654
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HE_ZZ)F+ A=+ —HILFEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. W H )

(b) S5 el B 4 BIL H B B 8 SRE

(b) Financial risks management objectives

and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investments, held-for-trading
investments, trade and other receivables, cash and bank
balances and trade and other payables. The Company’s
major financial instruments include other receivables,
amounts due from subsidiaries, bank balances and
amounts due to subsidiaries. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and equity
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
and the Company’s interest rate risk is attributable to
the variable rate bank balances. As the Group and the
Company do not expect material fluctuation in interest
rate movement, the exposure to interest rate risk is
insignificant. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures

are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market Risks

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the
financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange
rates and equity prices. Market risk exposures are
further measured by sensitivity analysis. There has been
no change to the Group’s exposure to market risks or
the manner in which it manages and measures the risk.
Details of each type of market risks are described as

follows:
(i) Currency risk

The Group has minimal currency risk as most of
the financial assets or liabilities are denominated
in functional currencies in which the subsidiaries

operate.

The Company has no currency risk at the balance
sheet date.
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J& o~ FIE o w25 e TH 2
15 C A B B R A B - %S
Fil T EL AR B 2 L i B 4 T 35 Bt
(B e Tl By~ M) 3 Il ey e e A
% B ) > A5 B R B L B K
JE g o A S [ B A 2 ] 2 ) 25 S
B JosR B RAT R 2 A
R o i AR [ B AR 2w FE R
REEA G HBUREEE > Hik
) 25 J B {8 J A 6k o T ST A
TR e 35 1K 7% <5 JEL B 2 BORE ©
P A P % B P R A A B o DL
R 18 % IR LA 255 47 A 7 2 4
Jiti <

i 33 i Bt

A 4R 9] S 55 = T A B R
JBeAS (B A% 5 By 2 e b JL B - T 35
JoR B — 2 DA SBURR BE 7 A B o
A S [ J T 2 T 4 L B B
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 wE_ZZ)\F+_HA=+—HILFEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6.

(b) Financial risks management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market Risks (Continued)
(ii) Interest rate risk

The Group has minimal interest rate risk as most
of the interest bearing financial assets are bank

deposits.
(iii) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in listed equity securities.
The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risks and closely monitor the price

changes.
Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been

determined based on the exposure to equity price

risks at the balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A W 5 A M i

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE_EE)NE+_H=1—

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risks management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market Risks (Continued)
(iii) Equity price risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If the prices of the respective equity instruments
had been 10% (2007: 5%) higher/lower:

* profit for the year ended 31st December, 2008
would increase/decrease by HK$1,390,000
(2007: increase/decrease by approximately
HK$1,352,000) for the Group as a result of
the changes in fair value of held-for-trading
investments; and

* investment revaluation reserve would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$23,128,000
(2007: increase/decrease by approximately
HK$23,925,000) for the Group as a result of
the changes in fair value of available-for-sale
investments.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis
is not necessarily representative of the Group’s
equity price risk as it only reflects the impact of
equity price changes to equity securities held at
the year end but not the exposure during the year.

The Company has no equity price risk at the
balance sheet date.

Credit Risks

As at 31st December, 2008, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties provided by the Group is arising
from the carrying amount of respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated balance
sheet.

H 145

6. &I H

(b) S5 e B 4 B H B B SR
(%)

i 53 BB ()
(iii) JRA EU#% BB ()
HEEE 73T (A

A1 AR B I AR 7B o 2 B A b
Tt/ F B10% (— FF L
A 59) ¢

e WE XL NEFH
=+ —HILFEAREH
2 A R R ERE
ZNE SR B
W 1,390,000 (-
FTFLAF  wm W
#)1,352,000 #570) 5 M

o P& H AL A A B R
At ERE 2 AT
{E 5% B Mo 8 7 s Y
#123,128,000 % o (&
T4 B W&
23,925,000 ¥ T)

ERLE RS o bR R R
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B A W5 % M i

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 wE_ZZ)\F+_HA=+—HILFEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risks management objectives

and policies (Continued)
Credit Risks (Continued)

In order to minimize the credit risk, the Group will
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover any
overdue debts. The Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual receivable at each balance
sheet date to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
recognised for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the Directors of the Company consider that the Group’s

credit risk is significantly reduced.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds
which are deposited with several banks and security
brokers with high credit ratings, the Group does not

have any other significant concentration of credit risk.

With respective to the amounts due from subsidiaries,
the Company’s exposure to credit risk arising from
default of counterparty is limited as the Company
expects to recover the amounts from the counterparties
within one year and the Company does not expect
any significant loss for uncollected advances to these

entities.
Liquidity Risks

The Group is not exposed to liquidity risk as the Group
expects to have sufficient funds to meet its financial

obligations when they fall due.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group will consider

raising bank borrowings when it is necessary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A Y5 A M i

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 wE_ZFZZ)N\F+_HA=+—HILFEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Consinued) 6. E@TH @
(b) Financial risks management objectives (b) o5 B 4 B H B K BOR

and policies (Continued) (#)
Liquidity Risks (Continued) it B e 4 WL B ()
Liquidity table AL grre
The following table details the Group’s remaining RGN ALE B ) IR A B A
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial HZ B8R T a KB MED o 1Ry
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the AR A B2 9] 7 T B 49 S SR M 7 B
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on A AN R H 2 KA 4
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to TG E] o N REFEFE KA
pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash B BLE o
flows.

less than 3 months 6 months

3 months to 6 months to 1 year Total

SRIMA - 3EMA  MAEIE At

HK$°000  HK$000  HKS$’000  HK$'000
T Tt Tt Tt

The Group ALH
As at 31st December, 2008 BT\

+=H=+—H
Trade and other payables JE A B 7 Bk I

At B A% K 33,162 52 — 33,214
As at 31st December, 2007 N EERLAE

+=A=+—H
Trade and other payables T A 8 7 Bk I

At B A% K 37,601 252 14,067 51,920
The Company AR
As at 31st December, 2008 e e YN

+=H=+—H
Amounts due to subsidiaries AT BB 2 ) 2 TE 2,638 — — 2,638
As at 31st December, 2007 N EELAE

+=A=+—H
Trade and other payables JE A B 7 Bk I

A T A R 3K 9 — — 9
Amounts due to subsidiaries AT BB A ) 2 TE 2,645 — — 2,645

2,654 — — 2,654
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A W 5 A M i

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 wE_ZZ)N\FE+_HA=+—HILFEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. T H )

(c) Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

are determined as follows:

. the fair value of financial assets with standard
terms and conditions and traded on active liquid
markets are determined with reference to quoted

market prices; and

. the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis or using price from

observable current market transactions.

The Directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of all financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated

financial statements approximate their fair values.

(c) ATl

S5 7 B A S R AR 2 AP A%
AT 7 K

o HA MR R A B
I B U T 3 B
Z MBREE 2 AFET)
S WP W EE 5 K

o HAB B R E W A
ZNFE T AR R I BB
TR Z — AR E
A SR R A8
W BLAT 35 2 5 2 B A
i E

ARNFEEGDS - ARG Y
5 i 2 10 AR B B 2 B S B
FE 5 S s A R B L
EARA -

7. GROSS PROCEEDS FROM 7. BB AEBIBA

OPERATIONS AND REVENUE

2008 2007

ZRENAE ZEELE

HK$°000 HK$°000

T#x T

Sales of properties HEY) # 3,178 447,824

REVENUE WA 3,178 447,824
Sale proceeds from disposal of held-for- &R BUE 2 BB I

trading investments 24,782 40,984

Dividend income from held-for-trading FrEREZRBBA
investments 1,154 1,374
GROSS PROCEEDS FROM OPERATIONS  £&#5 i 2 48 % 29,114 490,182
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B A Y5 A M i

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 wE_ZFZZ)N\F+_HA=+—HILFEE

8.

GEOGRAPHICAL AND BUSINESS

SEGMENTS

The Group’s principal activities are property development
and investment in Shanghai and Macau together with its

securities trading and investment activities in Hong Kong.

GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

The Group’s operations in 2008 and 2007 were located in
Hong Kong, Macau and the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”), other than Hong Kong and Macau. These locations

are the basis on which the Group reports its primary segment

information as follows:

2008

8. BRI BB M

AL 2 EBER M Bl R 2
EBRBERE  BEFBELEHFEE
B AEET -

$5 3 I 23 35

AEER _FENFR-FFLFELZ
PR SEB LR E - WP R #EA
B AN B (T rp B ) OF 645 7 i M IR
M) o ARSI Ty 1% 5% 45 M I 2 S5 I Bk
e BRAETEESBERIT

e £ 2,52

The PRC,
other than
Hong Kong
Hong Kong Macau  and Macau Total
i (A 45
Hit W R ) it
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T#rL T#x T#x T#x

Gross proceeds from operations

Revenue
External sales

Results
Segment results

Dividends from available-for-sale
investments

Other income
Unallocated corporate expenses

Share of results of an associate

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year

AR W 2k AR

BA
ESplN R

ES

MBS

HHEREZRE

A
HAbUA

AT o AR 3E B 5

BR7BL il i A1
BLIA

A BE i A1

25,936 52 3,126 29,114

(18,004) (770) (12,638) (31,412)

8,773
11,900
(4,837)

(15,576)
49,248

33,672
441

34,113
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 wE_ZZ)N\FE+_HA=+—HILFEE

8. GEOGRAPHICAL AND BUSINESS 8. BIBIIE B BB )
SEGMENTS (Continued)
GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (Continued) b I 4y 38 )
2008 (Continued) BB\ (H)
The PRC,
other than
Hong Kong
Hong Kong Macau  and Macau Total
P (A
Fi WM M) A5
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TH0 T T TG
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES Ve &L
Assets 2423
Segment assets DK E 16,893 37,957 18,204 73,054
Interest in an associate RSN E e 2S 317,870
Unallocated corporate assets AT oA EEE 911,123
Consolidated total assets b RS 1,302,047
Liabilities £ 18
Segment liabilities A E — 10,693 30,558 41,251
Unallocated corporate liabilities ATt EAE 88,841
Consolidated total liabilities LEMAE 130,092
Other information A& B
For the year ended BE_FFT)NE
31st December, 2008 +=HA=+—H
R4
Capital additions HERE — 28 —
Depreciation of property, Wik ~ Wm Sk
plant and equipment — 25 32
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 MEFEL) M+ H=1T—HIEFRE

8. GEOGRAPHICAL AND BUSINESS

8. BRI BB W)

SEGMENTS (Continued)
GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (Continued) 3 Bk 23 I8 40)
2007 —FFLHE
The PRC,
other than
Hong Kong
Hong Kong Macau  and Macau Total
R (R T
i WM AW REM) Mt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
T 0 T 0 T T T T
Gross proceeds from operations  #& % i35 48 4 42,358 388 447,436 490,182
Revenue WA
External sales EapAN RS — 388 447,436 447,824
Results £
Segment results NS 6,293 (806) 209,958 215,445
Other income HAthle A 11,758
Unallocated corporate expenses AT R E T (4,449)
222,754
Share of results of an associate TE (Lt % N ) 2645 82,792
Profit before taxation o 5 i v 305,546
Taxation BilE (75,714)
Profit for the year AR i | 229,832
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55 W B W R Wk
For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE EFNE+H=A4—HILEEF
8. GEOGRAPHICAL AND BUSINESS 8. BIBIIE B R )
SEGMENTS (Continued)
GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (Continued) i b I 4y 38 )
2007 (Continued) —RRLAE )
The PRC,
other than
Hong Kong
Hong Kong Macau  and Macau Total
HE (AL EE
s P AW RIEM) st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
T#5 70 T T T¥5 70
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES % Rl
Assets 243
Segment assets NREE 36,620 37,953 22,670 97,243
Interest in an associate RSN w S 334,506
Unallocated corporate assets AP REAEER 1,118,691
Consolidated total assets b R 1,550,440
Liabilities £ 1%
Segment liabilities AR — 10,689 49,256 59,945
Unallocated corporate liabilities AP EARE 93,859
Consolidated total liabilities e el 153,804
Other information A& B
For the year ended BE_FTLE
31st December, 2007 +=H=+—H
1R
Capital additions BRENE — — 16
Depreciation of property, ER NG
plant and equipment e — 19 38
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B A W 5 A M i

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HE_ZZ)F+ A=+ —HILFEE

8.

GEOGRAPHICAL AND BUSINESS
SEGMENTS (Continued)

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

8.

For management purposes, the Group is currently organised

into two operating divisions — property development and

investment, and securities trading. These divisions are the

basis on which the Group reports its secondary segment

information as follows:

CES NV ES Pig (0

R

LA HE A B > AR 4R H R W IH
V) 2 8% e % 4% 6 B i o
oo AEM TR GG HEE B

X

FRE AR T

Gross proceeds from

operations by business

YRS A o 2 B W Ak A
2008 2007
ZRENAE ZEELF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T¥Io
Property development and investment W SEBEE NE 3,178 447,824
Securities trading HAEEE 25,936 42,358
29,114 490,182

Carrying amount

of segment assets

Additions to property,

plant and equipment

235088 7 K i L Yok ~ BB B il A%
2008 2007 2008 2007
“EENE ST LFE ZEENE FEFLF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T#rx T 0 TG T T
Property development and YIEa R &
investment 56,161 60,623 28 16
Securities trading EhEEE 16,893 36,620 — —
73,054 97,243 28 16
Interest in an associate B A 2 A 317,870 334,506
Unallocated assets RFnMHERE 911,123 1,118,691
1,302,047 1,550,440
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B A W 5 A Mk i

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 wE_ZZ)\F+_HA=+—HILFEE

9. OTHER INCOME

Interest income of HK$11,125,000 (2007: HK$11,173,000)

was included in other income.

10. OTHER EXPENSES

The expenses represented final settlement of the cost of a
property development project. The property development

project was completed and the residential area was disposed

9. HABBA

HAth e A 35 RS A 11,125,000

Jo(EE-LAE 1 11,173,000 8 78) ©

10. HAbBH %

%55 B SO — R 268 R IH H A 2
RAKEE o Y RIEE 5 T
iR g -

of.
11. TAXATION 11. BtIH
2008 2007
BB\ ZERELF
HK$’000 HK$°000
T-# T
Current tax: ARAEERIE
Hong Kong Profits Tax A B F — 883
PRC Enterprise Income Tax rh [R5 B 442 23,656
PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) A B8] - b 3 (E B (2,959) 48,130
Deferred tax (note 28) PEIEFLIA (72 28) 2,200 —
(317) 72,669
(Over) underprovision in prior years: WAEAEE GRRRE AR )
BHAR -
Hong Kong Profits Tax T v ) A5 (25) (13)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax Hh R 4 36 BT A5 (99) 3,058
(124) 3,045
Total tax (credit) charge for the year AR A HERIH (418 4%) B SC AR (441) 75,714
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B A Y 5 A M i

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HE_ZZ)F+ A=+ —HILFEE

11. TAXATION (Continued) 11. B 47)

On 26th June, 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed the Revenue Bill 2008 which reduced corporate profits
tax rate from 17.5% to 16.5% effective from the year of
assessment 2008/2009. No provision for Hong Kong Profits
Tax has been made for 2008 as the Group’s profit neither
arose in, nor was derived from Hong Kong (2007: Hong
Kong Profits Tax was calculated at 17.5% of the assessable

profit for the year).

On 16th March, 2007, the PRC promulgated the Law
of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “New Law”)
by Order No. 63 of the President of the PRC. On 6th
December, 2007, the State Council of the PRC issued
Implementation Regulations of the New Law. The New Law
and Implementation Regulations changed the tax rate from

15% to 25% with effect from 1st January, 2008.

The domestic income tax rate is the income tax rate of the
jurisdiction where the major operations of the Group are
based. The major subsidiaries have their operations located
in Pudong New Area, Shanghai, the PRC, and were subject
to a tax rate of 18% for the year ended 31st December, 2008
(2007: 15%).

As set out in note 28, deferred taxation of HK$2,200,000
has been provided for in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of the undistributed profits earned by the Group’s
PRC associate starting from 1st January, 2008 attributable to
the Group under the New Law that are subject to withholding
tax upon the distribution of such profits to the shareholders
outside the PRC.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the

rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

W FEENFENHAHZFTARNHE Fi
b7 g i Kt e AN Y /NG |
Z)o W FETN ) ZBRILHBLAE
JE 2 AR 3 A A5 B BL R B 17.5% 8 &
16.5% © H A 7 42 B 2 i ) 9F 7 A
B B A - O M
ERFEREBREE (CEELFE - &
5 I A5 B AR 48 5% 47 B 2 M R B s )
17.5% s15&) °

MREFEEZELFE=H+HNH > PERE
B T 5 A 56 63 5% A b B A 2
BBUEY T BLE D) « R FF L
T HSH > A B B B A A 8 BT
BURG AN RI) o 7 BT S B e A B 5 A R
HFE/NE—H— HHE 15% [ %
2 25% ©

FRER 2 B3 Bl R Ty A L 1l - 2L 3
AR A i - N
BB N W 2 SEBS A B i R R
BiE> HnhEE T NE+ A
S HIEFEZBIRL 18% (FF
LA 1 15%) o

AN B R 28 Ak > SRR BB EFE
#E 2,200,000 5 7T 1 1L Bl TELAE 484 -
W T A B A A [ AR 4 e B 1 B A A
B g AR B R FENE—H—
H I B 2 R 20 DR Vs A1) - T R ) A (B
355 A1 B B 43 UR A B i R e A A 2 TR
B o

i JH At ) 32 W [ A 22 B TR T 4 A B
FHERERR 2 BATBLRFHA
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 wE_ZZ)\F+_HA=+—HILFEE

11. TAXATION (Continued) 11. ﬁﬁ (#5)

A B 2 T T B S BLAR A A AR 2 BR
8 BT i A1) (AN 60 45 JE Ak B 8 2 =) 3640

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit

before taxation (excluding share of results of an associate) per

consolidated income statement as follows: ZEIENT
2008 2007
“REBNE “ETZELF
HK$°000 HKS$’000
T#x T
(Loss) profit before taxation (excluding FRBLHT (&5 18) T A (A 6045 1
share of results of an associate) 15 W 2\ ) SE AR (15,576) 222,754
Tax at the PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate % | g f 5B [ 2
at Pudong New Area, Shanghai of 18% Hh B A T 1S BB AR 18%
(2007: 15%) (ZFFLE : 15%)
s BiIE (2,804) 33,413
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax PEIE BB 2 BLHS 5 2
purpose (890) (4,342)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax AN FJ F1AL 52 H 2 B 52 28
purpose 688 1,799
Tax effect of tax losses for the year not AR R ERR 2 BB SR 2
recognised o 5 B 22 2,916 763
(Over) underprovision in prior years A A B GRR BRI ) B
N (124) 3,045
PRC LAT R B - (E R (2,427) 40,911
Deferred tax on undistributed earnings Fp B B s m R A
of PRC’s associate derived after 31st TEELFEFH
December, 2007 = —H & Z K5k A
M 2 A= 2 40 S ol T 2,200 —
Effect of different tax rate in different [RIAS ] =] 54 [ 1 AN TR
jurisdiction BiREE 2 B = 125
Tax (credit) charge for the year AR FERLIE (4K 450) S il (441) 75,714
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 MEFEL) M+ H=1T—HIEFRE

12. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

12. 4EFE R A

2008 2007
—RENE “EELHF
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#x THT
Profit for the year has been arrived at after 4% & ¥ A1 22 FUBR (FTFA)
charging (crediting):
Staff costs ISR %N 3,125 1,982
Retirement benefit scheme contributions ARARAE A F ) 2 K 86 126
Total staff costs B T liA 485t
(including Directors’ emoluments) (R EFHME) 3,211 2,108
Auditor’s remuneration 12 T I <2 1,010 970
Depreciation of property, plant and W~ WS KT
equipment 57 59
Cost of properties held for sale TR 2 P 15 85 W) SE LA
recognised as expense 2,331 203,669
Loss (gain) on change in fair value HRERENFEHEHZ
of held-for-trading investments e 18 (4 ) 20,615 (621)
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 wE_ZZ)\F+_HA=+—HILFEE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 13. 5 K g B4
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) WHME
The emoluments paid or payable to each Director for B ZFZZ/)EFE+__H=+—H
the year ended 31st December, 2008 are set out below: IHAEE B AT BB T & E = 2
S

Salaries, Retirement

allowances benefit Total

and other scheme emoluments

Name of director Fees benefits contributions 2008
Fiw W BAHA ZFENE

LA HaE RICbEA w2z K O 42 2 781

HK$°000  HK$’000  HK$000  HK$°000
T#L TH#L T T#x

Executive directors T ES
Liu Xiaolong N — — = —
Hsu Feng % M — — = —
Tong Albert % Tl — — = —
Gu Yiwei PPN — — — —
Xu Mei i — 758 12 770
Resigned director BHEH T
Lu Yihao [ 14 ik — — = —
Non-executive director P T ES
Sung Tze-Chun RIUE — — — —

Independent non-executive W AT

directors

Liang Jung-Chi Sy 23 60 — — 60

Zhang Hong Bin =000 82 — — 82

Sit Hing Kwok B B[R] 60 — = 60
202 758 12 972
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 MEFEL) M+ H=1T—HIEFRE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 13. # g8 g B4 o)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EHHFME =)
The emoluments paid or payable to each Director for g EEEHEt+_H=+—H
the year ended 31st December, 2007 are set out below: (F4E B A BUEAT T & 2 T
SR
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit Total
and other scheme  emoluments
Name of director Fees benefits contributions 2007
I - A 7l — =
3 P e RHMER  FHEZ A P 4 448

HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
Tt Tt Tt Tt

Executive directors T
Liu Xiaolong 2N — _ _ _
Hsu Feng % — _ — _
Lu Yihao G 14 ik — — — _
Tong Albert Y o maCl — _ — _
Xu Mei (A — 755 12 767
Non-executive director FfTHE T
Sung Tze-Chun RIUE _ _ — _

Independent non-executive B R BT R

directors

Liang Jung-Chi g =8 60 — — 60

Zhang Hong Bin L%/ 82 — — 82

Sit Hing Kwok i LY 30 — — 30

Resigned director RHE#

Hou Chun i E) 30 — — 30
202 755 12 969

No Director waived any emoluments for either year. ISR RS ANE V- e O L
/1%:’ o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 wE_ZZ)\F+_HA=+—HILFEE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

During the year, the five highest paid individuals of
the Group included one (2007: one) director whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
above. For the remaining four highest paid individuals
(2007: four), their individual emoluments do not exceed

HK$1,000,000 each and are as follows:

13. 54 K fig H 4 )

(b) 435 v B A L

AN > A SE [ A B
BN L — 2 (CFFR L
—Z)EF > HME& e m LXK
Bo SRR A (T EELAE Y
PAR T 1 DN - A=
W /S 48 1,000,000 %5 G > H P

SRS
2008 2007
ZRFNAE ZEELAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THR Fitise
Salaries, allowances and other benefits S - R A AR A 943 1,499
Retirement benefit scheme contributions B 5 3 2 2k 24 12
967 1,511

14. DIVIDEND 14. JBt &

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.01 per share for the year ended 31st December, 2008
(2007: HK$0.02 per share) which is subject to approval by

the shareholders at the forthcoming general meeting.

In June 2008, a dividend of HK$0.02 (2007: HK$0.02) per
share amounting to approximately HK$52,171,000 (2007:
HK$52,171,000) in aggregate was paid to shareholders as the
final dividend for the year ended 31st December, 2007.

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the
Group’s profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
for the year ended 31lst December, 2008 of approximately
HK$34,202,000 (2007: HK$220,803,000) and on the
number of 2,608,546,511 (2007: 2,608,546,511) shares in

issue during the year.

No diluted earnings per share is presented as there were no
potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding during both

years.
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=t HIEFEZ KRR EE R 0.01
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M JF 1 TS SR T Jeet S SRR B b Lo
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BE - FZZLE+_A=+—HIL45F
2 R E 0.2 LA LA
52,171,000 # 76 & A —F F /NN A
(ZFFLF: Bo.02# I » A3t
52,171,000 #5 7C) IR AT T B 3R »

15. 5B & A

BRERBEATIREAEHREE —F
FNFE+ A=+ —HILFEARNF
% BRI A Y4k 1) 49 34,202,000 %5 70 (%
Z L4 1 220,803,000 % 0 ) KA N E
B AT % #02,608,546,511 B (—FE L
4 1 2,608,546,511 %) 515 ©
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B A Y 5 A M i

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HE_ZZ)F+ A=+ —HILFEE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. W3 ~ B3 Bk i

Freehold Furniture
land and and Motor
building equipment vehicle Total
A AR EHE
AR YT S TN FiH HHi
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
THIT T T SR
THE GROUP A
COST JEA
At st January, 2007 WZZFLFE—H—H 599 386 193 1,178
Additions NE — 16 — 16
Write-off TS = ) — )
Exchange realignment I = 15 14 29
At 31st December, 2007 NoEERLE+—A=+—H 599 408 207 1,214
Additions NE — 28 — 28
Write-off e = (80) = (80)
Exchange realignment I = 14 14 28
At 31st December, 2008 NEENE+—HA=+—H 599 370 221 1,190
DEPRECIATION Wi
At st January, 2007 WEZFLFE—H—H 295 253 174 722
Provided for the year GANE 15 44 — 59
Eliminated on write-off TR IR B = 9) = )
Exchange realignment e i, — 7 13 20
At 31st December, 2007 N_EELE+ A =+—H 310 295 187 792
Provided for the year RN 15 42 — 57
Eliminated on write-off TR IR 6 = (80) = (80)
Exchange realignment i 57,3 %% = 8 12 20
At 31st December, 2008 NZEENE+ A =+—H 325 265 199 789
CARRYING VALUES I i 4
At 31st December, 2008 MREZENETZH=Z1—H 274 105 22 401
At 31st December, 2007 N_EELE+ A =+—H 289 113 20 422
The frechold land and building are located in Macau. DL K ZEREFRF A 2 1 s R M o7 i IR
fq o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 wE_ZZ)\F+_HA=+—HILFEE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

16. Y13 ~ W) B s (a0)

Furniture

and equipment

AR Bt fhi
HK$°000
T
THE COMPANY AR
COST JEAR
At st January, 2007 HoEELFE—H—H 29
Write-off T EH (2)
At 31st December, 2007 and N EELFE+ A= —H K
31st December, 2008 —EENEFE+H=1—H 27
DEPRECIATION Ir#
At Ist January, 2007 N_FELE—~H—H 29
Eliminated on write-off T Ry 36

At 31st December, 2007 and
31st December, 2008

CARRYING VALUES
At 31st December, 2008

At 31st December, 2007

MoEEEFE+A=1T—HRK
—EENFF_H=1—H

Wi 4
REZZMNEF A=+ —H

MoEELFE+—H=+—H
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B 5 W B A Y

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE _EZ)FE+_H=1—HI4EE
17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. B A 6l 2 HE 2%

The Company

A2 W)

2008 2007
RRAE T
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#xL T

Investments in subsidiaries TR E 2 A2 I
Unlisted shares, at cost FE TR By 2 B A 7,891 7,891
Less: Impairment loss recognised I - ELHE AR U e 1R (6,091) (6,091)
1,800 1,800
Amounts due from subsidiaries JEY G 2\ il S 1,037,539 989,667
Less: Impairment loss recognised I AR AR (EL s 1R (429,104) (429,304)
608,435 560,363
Amounts due to subsidiaries JENT I 28l #00E 2,638 2,645

TR W, B A A JB 2 ) ek T A
G B B R — 4F i [e] BZEA 4 2R
RF{E 72 -

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-

free and recoverable within one year or repayable on demand.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 wE_ZZ)\F+_HA=+—HILFEE

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17. AP B A v\ 2 W%k (47)

CCFFAEL A S AR
P 24 7 2 B T

Details of principal subsidiaries at 31st December, 2008 are

as follows:

Paid up issued Proportion of
ordinary nominal value
Place of share capital/ of issued capital/
incorporation registered registered capital
Name of subsidiary and operation capital  held by the Company  Principal activities
MR TR AT
i) ATA WHBBA,  AXARHCET
WY I 4 ) 4 KR AR BRI GENYE AR R
Directly  Indirectly
Hik 1] 2
% %
Advance Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$2 — 100  Investment holding
R B EAH R AT i 2T HEER
Chiefast Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 — 100 Investment holding
(e B RA R i 27T R
Celion Corp. British Virgin Islands US$1 100 — Investment holding
SR AR RS IS AR
Coin Kind Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 — Investment holding
BEARA Hils 10,000%7% ALK
Dynasty Surplus Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 — Investment holding
BREFAHRAH &b 10,0007 75 TR
Forty Enterprises Company Limited Hong Kong HK$20,000 100 — Investment holding
HREFARAA Eis 20,0004 7 RALEH
Giant Hero Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 — DProvision of nominee
His 10,0009 7T services
AR MRFS
Joker Investments Company Hong Kong HK$20,000 100 — Investment holding
Limited i 20,000/7¢ TR
AR EARAR
Kingpart Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 —  Provision of nominee
S 4% B A R T ik 10,0007 70 services
HRAE R MRFS
Parklane Industries Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 — Investment holding
ARECRARAH &b 10,0001 ¢ i8idis
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HE_ZZ)F+ A=+ —HILFEE

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17. AP B A v\ 2 W%k (47)

Paid up issued Proportion of
ordinary nominal value
Place of share capital/ of issued capital/
incorporation registered registered capital
Name of subsidiary and operation capital  held by the Company  Principal activities
B TR AT
i3] ATA WaBBA,  AXARHCET
W 2 5 44 4 BRI H AR BRI GEME AR BERH
Directly  Indirectly
Hi% 1] 2
% %

Rivera Holdings (Macau) — Macau MOP100,000 — 60 Property development
Sociedade de Investimentos e Y 100,000 [ and investment
Fomento Predial, Limitada WISEBEIE R E

JISRTSE R () A AR

Rivera Management (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 —  Provision of secretarial

JIE R (F) A RAH Fig 10,0007 70 and administrative

services
{RALALE AT B
Rivera (Nominees) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 — Provision of nominee
JIE (RN AR ] il 10,000 7T services
1IN &S
Royton Inc. British Virgin Islands US$1 100 — Investment holding
KRS b BEER
Shine Trip Limited Hong Kong HK$4,000,000 — 100 Investment holding and
S A IR A Fis 4,000,000%7C securities trading
BEER R EFRE

SOFIL — Sociedade de Fomento Macau MOP2,500,000 60 40  Property development
Industrial de Macau, Limitada R 2,500,000 and investment

RM T3 RARA ES Y EE

Superwell Development Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 — Investment holding

REBERARAHA Eil 10,0007 BELER

LEREERHRAR PRC US$16,290,000 — 93.53  Property development

(Shanghai Boulevard Real Estate HE 16,290,000% G and management
Co., Limited) (Note) (fffit) YRR ER

Note: The subsidiary is a sino-foreign equity joint venture WaE - BB E A | A — FAE B R Y

established in the PRC. NG B o

5 R 25 7 4 4 A ) SR 9 AT
I MR R 2 (5%

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding
at the end of the year, or at any time during the year.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 wE_ZZ)\F+_HA=+—HILFEE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 18. Br¥ Pk
The cost and carrying value of the Group’s investment AREMZBEWER —FFLERL
property at 31st December, 2007 and 2008 were ZENE+TH=1+—H Z A &IE
HK$28,563,000. The investment property is a piece of T 1B 5 28,563,000 ¥ 7C » s% X G W %
freehold land located in Macau. Sy — RO AR P DR A ERERE A 2
b o

The fair value of the Group’s investment property at REBZEEYER _FFNFE+Z
31st December, 2008 was HK$203,000,000 (2007: H=+—HZ2AF{E 203,000,000 #
HK$375,000,000). The fair value has been arrived at based Jo (- EE L4 375,000,000 % 70) ©
on a valuation carried out by an independent valuer not LB T £ F — {3 B 7S 4 (B 4 B 7
connected with the Group. The valuation was determined by B SEAGE AT A EAS o AG(E )Y

reference to recent market prices for similar properties. KRBZHUMEZ BoL T ETEE

19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 19. BB A 6] Z
The Group
A4

2008 2007

“REBNE “EFTLE

HK$°000 HK$°000

T#L TH#T

Cost of investment in an associate TR B SN 2 PG A 214,224 214,224

Share of post-acquisition profits and other Ak % 14 Vi A1) & FHiAth
reserves it 103,646 120,282
317,870 334,506
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HE_ZZ)F+ A=+ —HILFEE

19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

Details of the associate of the Group at 31st December, 2008

are as follows:

AR FEFEAFF AT

ZHEE AT Z R

19. AW B A v 2 BER (4)

Percentage
of interest in
registered
Place of capital
Form of registration  Paid up indirectly
business and registered held by the Principal
Name of associate structure operation capital Company activities
ik W AR A
B8 A A EBARER Rl  SUGEMEA (3§ LR e =2
Shanghai Zhangjiang Sino-foreign equity PRC RMB370,830,000 37% Property
Micro-electronics Port joint venture I ANE#370,830,0007C development and
Co. Ltd. (“SZMP?”) MR B management
UESY P

BRI METEHRAT
(I#AETF AT

The summarised financial information in

Group’s associate is set out below:

respect of the

A AR ) 2 Wk A ) 2 BB ORI AL A

T

2008 2007

ZRZNAE ZEELAF

HK$°000 HK$°000

T#T T¥o

Total assets W 1,659,339 1,677,035

Total liabilities Y= (800,232) (768,075)

Net assets G E 859,107 908,960

Group’s share of net assets of associate A A5 [ A G T 4 N w) 317,870 334,506

Revenue I 45 143,067 923,116

Profit for the year 18 Vi 133,103 226,095
Group’s share of result of associate 7 4 [ A\ A N ) 2

of the year E S 49,248 82,792
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 wE_ZZ)\F+_HA=+—HILFEE

20.

21.

D)l

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

Available-for-sale investments as at 31st December,
2008 comprise equity securities listed in Hong Kong of
approximately HK$231,275,000 (2007: HK$478,501,000).

At the balance sheet date, all available-for-sale investments
are stated at fair value. Fair values of these investments have

been determined by reference to the quoted market prices.

The investments represent 12.05% (2007: 12.11%) of the
ordinary shares of Tomson Group Limited (“TGL”) which is
a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and listed on

the Stock Exchange.

HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS

Held-for-trading investments represent equity securities listed

in Hong Kong.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
AND PREPAYMENTS

At balance sheet date, the Group had no trade receivable
(2007: HK$7,315,000 which were aged less than three
months) and had other receivables of approximately

HK$7,166,000 (2007: HK$7,122,000).

Considerations in respect of sold properties are payable by
the purchasers pursuant to the terms of the sale and purchase
agreements. At 31st December, 2007, the Group’s trade
receivables balance were debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$354,000 which were past due at the reporting
date for which the Group had not provided for impairment
loss. The Group did not hold any collateral over these

balances. The average age of these receivables was 90 days.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 MEFEL) M+ H=1T—HIEFRE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. MEWCRU SRk ~ Al MR
AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued) K B BT K )
The aging of trade receivables which are past due but not AR AHE AR E 2 BB 5 HRR 2
impaired: HEBA TR
The Group
ASE 1
2008 2007
—RENE “ETLEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#x THT
61 — 90 days 61%290H — 330
91 — 120 days 91£120H — 24
Total T — 354
23. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 23, B4 B WA
The Group’s bank balances carry interest at market rates A AR H 2 RAT SE R IR T 0.001 JE &
which range from 0.001% to 4.55% per annum (2007: 0.7% 455 (. EELFE 07 EZR6.1E)
to 6.1% per annum). 2 AR R RS E o
The Company’s bank balances carry interest at market rates AN T 2 GRATEE R T 0.001 JE E 4
which range from 0.001% to 4% per annum (2007: 0.7% to JHE(CEELE 07 ERGIE) ZTH
6.1% per annum). BAER %R EE, o

Annual Report 2008 4EFE4F#; | Rivera (Holdings) Limited )11 45 8 5 FR 2 7] 92



93

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A W 5 A Mk i

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 wE_ZZ)\F+_HA=+—HILFEE

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Included in trade and other payables are trade payables and

their aged analysis as at the balance sheet date is as follows:

X

24, MEA B Wik B U fib HE A+ Bl

TE M AT 52 5 B sk & JFE At B AT Rk A0 £
8RBT 5 Bk > T HR A5 H R

ZHRE TR
The Group
AR
2008 2007
ZRFNAE ZEEALAF
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#xL T¥Io
Aged analysis of trade payables: JEASH & 5 B 3k 2 BRI 43 # -
0 — 3 months 0% 31/ J 14,963 40,616
4 — 6 months 4261 H — —
7 — 12 months 721218 H 725 —
1 — 2 years 15 24F 6,615 39
22,303 40,655
25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. JBEAKR

Number
of shares Value
Bty ¥ H M
2008 and 2007 2008 and 2007
“EENER ZERNER
ZEZLAE “ERLAE
HK$°000
R

Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each 8 5 B R T 0. 05 6 7T

— Authorised — EERA 20,000,000,000 1,000,000
— Issued and fully paid — BT RBUE A 2,608,546,511 130,427
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 MEFEL) M+ H=1T—HIEFRE

26. RESERVES AND MINORITY 26. fift fi B b BB A BE 3%

INTERESTS
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
A B R A A
Foreign Other
Capital  currency Investment  non-dis-
Share redemption translation revaluation tributable  Retained Minority
premium reserve reserve reserve  reserve (¥) profits Total interests Total
Jefr 163 Ahe % RAT L2
WEOR MG iR WOGGE MG C)  RREA BE BOREER i
HK$’000  HK$’000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$000 HK$°000  HK$000  HKS$'000
TH#T  T#x  TEx  TEx  T#Ex TEx  T#x  TEx  Tix
THE GROUP A%
Balance at Ist January, 2007 WoZZLE—H—H&H 307,108 4709 19861 68,586 36,222 449881 886367 14,098 900,465
Gain on change in fair value of  AI{kH & S E/A T
available-for-sale investments  EEBIRFEAL 2 It — — — 151,525 — — 151,525 — 151,525
Exchange differences arising R ERFES 2
from translation £ - — 18234 - - — 18234 1261 19495
Share of net reserve movements  JEHEHE /AT RS 2
of an associate T4 — — 19,687 — 559 — 20,246 — 20,246
Net income recognised directly B E# MR R 2
in equity A = = 37,921 151,525 559 — 190,005 1,261 191,266
Profit for the year ERERA — — — — — 220,803 220,803 9,029 229,832
Total recognised income FERERERZARA
for the year = = 37,921 151,525 559 220,803 410,808 10,290 421,098
Transfer from retained profits  FfH & AL R E
of a subsidiary to other non- A E LA AT
distributable reserve fkfi — — — — 22,127 (22,127) = = =
Transfer from retained profits  Bi& /A LR E
of an associate to other non- A E LA AT
distributable reserve fkfi — — — — 10,156 (10,156) — — —
Dividend paid CiRARE - - - — — (7)) (52,171) — (5217
Dividends paid to minority TRATTHE AR
shareholders of a subsidiary HERZ BB — — - — — — — (3,183) (3,183)
Balance at 31st December, REERALAE
2007 ToA=T—BE R 307,108 4,709 57,782 220,111 69,064 586,230 1,245,004 21,205 1,266,209
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 wE_ZZ)\F+_HA=+—HILFEE

26. RESERVES AND MINORITY 26. i Be 2 BB R ME 2R (47)

INTERESTS (Continued)
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
AR B AN
Foreign Other
Capital  currency Investment  non-dis-
Share redemption translation revaluation tributable  Retained Minority
premium reserve reserve reserve  reserve (%) profits Total interests Total
Jh 203 Shie /3 YV »Y
WOUR  BPIGE  RMEE TREH AREREC) REERA MR BN g
HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HKS$000
Tir  T#x  T#xc  TEx THx  TEx  TEx T TEx
Loss on change in fair value of  A[[fkh &5 /A T8
available-for-sale investments  EBIE L 2 51 — — —  (247,220) — —  (247,220) —  (247,220)
Exchange differences arising ~ HHRpEEZ
from translation 52 - — 1900 - - — 1900 135 20305
Share of net reserve movements (/A A 58 2
of an associate ekl — — 20,278 — — — 20,278 — 20,278
Net expense recognised directly B EH fEsBIMER 2
in equity Edi5 — — 39,288 (247,226) — —  (207,938) 1315 (206,623)
Profit for the year AR — — — = — 34,202 34,202 (89) 34,113
Total recognised expense FRERRZ AR
for the year — — 39,288 (247,226) — 34,202 (173,736) 1,226 (172,510)
Transfer from retained profits  Fit B AR RE
of a subsidiary to other non- i F|#E LA AT
distributable reserve i — — — — 1,039 (1,039) — — —
Transfer from retained profits  Bi& /A LR E
of an associate to other non- A AR AR
distributable reserve bt — — — — 30,552 (30,552) — — —
Dividend paid EIRARE — - - — — G217y L) - (217
Balance at 31st December, WEZRNEFZRA=F—H
2008 &h 307,108 4,709 97,070 (27,115) 100,655 536,670 1,019,097 22,431 1,041,528
* Other non-distributable reserve represents enterprise & H A S 1T 49 UR 1o A 4 32 FE AL — R B

expansion fund and other PRC statutory reserves arising from

BN A B KM~ R 2 A A
B R L I LA o B3 S (el AR

share of reserves of an associate and a subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A W 5 A M i

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 HE_ZZ)F+ A=+ —HILFEE

26. RESERVES AND MINORITY

26. fift i Be 2 BB AME £ (1)

INTERESTS (Continued)
Capital
Share redemption Retained
premium reserve profits Total
BBy i HA
Tk Vi o PR %A B
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
SR SR T T
THE COMPANY Y /AT |
Balance at 1st January, = FRLAE
2007 —HA—H& &% 307,108 4,709 250,790 562,607
Dividend paid EIRA RS — — (52,171) (52,171)
Loss for the year R — — (1,395) (1,395)
Balance at 31st December, N EE LA
2007 T H= AR 307,108 4,709 197,224 509,041
Dividend paid SRR RS — — (52,171) (52,171)
Profit for the year AT A — = 136,608 136,608
Balance at 31st December, REEENFE+H
2008 =T —H&R 307,108 4,709 281,661 593,478

At the balance sheet date, the Company had distributable
reserves of approximately HK$281,661,000 (2007:
HK$197,224,000).

27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group and the Company entered into

the following significant transactions with related parties:

(a)

A substantial shareholder has interests in the
Company and TGL. The Company has entered into
an arrangement with TGL, pursuant to which the
Group was allowed to use the office premises and
administrative resources of TGL. In return, the
Company is required to share an attributable portion of
the administrative cost of TGL. During the year ended
31st December, 2008, the administrative cost of TGL
shared by the Company amounted to approximately
HK$2,283,000 (2007: HK$1,800,000). As at 31st
December, 2008 and 31st December, 2007, no

outstanding balance was owed to TGL.

The above transaction constitutes a continuing
connected transaction but is exempted from disclosure

and approval requirements under Listing Rules.

A< I = R NP/ T B2 X T )
£5281,661,000% Jo(— F FE L F :
197,224,000 % JC) ©

27. WA LR Y
8 ) % A A AR A B L s A

AUTEENS
(@ A EEBRFAARF KGR

S B R 25 o A\ ) B o 4E [
I — AL HE > PRI > AREEE
YEE F 3 B 4 1 2 N B2
TTEUE YR o AN R ZE 3L UL B B
A5 ] 73 5 EAL L] 2 A7 B T o
REE EZZNET A=+
HIEERE > AN R 554k A
ZATHUE £ 2,283,000 5 G (.
EZ LA 11,800,000 78) © A
TEZRNEF+F A=+ —H &K
EELEFTZA=Z+—H » AL
) 7 4 R AT 5 e 4 AT AT 3OH -

VA b 32 5 W R AL BRI A 5 M
HE R CETRLAN) 2 5k K
HHEZHE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A W5 % M i

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 wE_ZZ)\F+_HA=+—HILFEE

27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(b) As at 31st December, 2008 and 31st December, 2007,
included in the consolidated financial statements
under trade and other payables, was an amount of
approximately HK$10,274,000 due to a minority
shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company. The
amount is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed

repayment terms.

28. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The followings are the deferred tax liabilities recognised by
the Group and movement thereon during the current and

prior reporting periods.

27. BN L2 5 )

b MoEFENF+_H=+—H
RZZEZLFE+T+_H=1+—H"
TEAF B ik 2 EAT & 5 MR 3K
Fo HoAh E AT BR K P - B —EL
10,274,000 % JCEAT A< A 7] — K
B g 2 7] 2 /D OB R A BRE o 7%
SRR IE 2y AR~ o B K M
A

28. JE € BeIH £1 1

DT 25y T 74 i o 30 ) ot 7 R 240 )
L RS A R AE B TH B o S A )

Undistributed
earnings

of PRC’s associate
v B 0B 2% A )

Z R 5 Uk i A
HK$°000

THs T

At 1st January, 2007 and
31st December, 2007

Charge to consolidated income statement

At 31st December, 2008

At the balance sheet date, the Group had unused tax losses
of approximately HK$78,466,000 (2007: HK$85,128,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the tax losses of
HK$78,466,000 (2007: tax losses of HK$85,128,000) due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included
in unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$1,576,000
that will expire on or before 31st December, 2011 (2007:
HK$2,696,000 that will expire on or before 31st December,
2010). Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Rivera (Holdings) Limited JII4:M A F/A R | Annual Report 2008 4B 478

R_FEFLFE-A—HAR
“FEFLFTA=1+—H —
R &R A IR INER

2,200

BoFE/N\F+ZH=1—H 2,200

A H > 2SS B AT AR HE 8 R AR U
Fl 2z A FH B0 IE s 48 4 7% 78,466,000 #5
JG(ZF F L 4F ¢ 85,128,000% T) °
H A 2 2 s ) DA TE I > ARE A R A
TH 5 15 78,466,000 #5 76 ( —FE L 4F
Bl JA 5 15 85,128,000 # T ) i 58 £ 1E
JERLTE K o oA RRBTE i 1H L 45 A%
W oFE——4F+ A=+ —HEZH
#2548 1,576,000 6 (—FE L
F 12,696,000 # 7T A% A —F — R4
A=t — BB ZEEE) - HAuk
8T 7 0 PR A o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A Y5 A M i

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 wE_ZFZZ)N\F+_HA=+—HILFEE

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 29. Jik JBCRE ST

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company
pursuant to a resolution passed on 29th May, 2002 (the “2002
Scheme”). The 2002 Scheme was set up for the primary
purpose to provide incentives and rewards to selected persons
for their contribution to the Group or any entity in which the
Group holds any equity interest (“Invested Entity”). Subject
to earlier termination by the Company in general meeting or
by the Board, the 2002 Scheme shall be valid and effective
till 28th May, 2012. After the expiry of such valid period, no
further options will be granted but in all other respects the
provisions of the 2002 Scheme shall remain in full force and

effect.

Under the 2002 Scheme, the Board may grant options to
(i) any employee or proposed employee (whether full time
or part time) of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity, including any executive director of any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity; or (ii) any non-executive
director (including independent non-executive director) of
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; or (iii) any
customer and supplier of goods or services to any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity who has contributed to the
Group; or (iv) any adviser or consultant of any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity who provides business advice
and business consultancy service to any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity; or (v) any shareholder of any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity or any holder of any
securities issued by any member of the Group or any Invested

Entity.

ARFRE-FF_AFRH HILH
A ) PR R S PR AR — TR R RE
(= FF4FFH]) RILFF
FEREINEEARNRE MR EZ A
A AR B A S R A AT T S
FEAT A ([ B BOE N 1) 2 FRAE
IR/ R LR S/NEIN L DN
e A b B R A R A Ik %
ARl AR A M E —F - F R
HZANH Lk o R 8O JE I 12 45 A
B FATR RO o M F ARt
B B A A HL A 5 5 TR 1 A A 2 AT
0

b

>

WRYE—FF _AFEGHE > EHE A L
N A R (i) A 4R B AT
B F ST AT B 8 i 2 AT ] 4 B
AR B O i 2 ) > A
5 BT A 1 B 23 ) SAT o] T 452 M A
ZAEAT AT 5 B (i) A 4 B AT A
JE 2 B BT AT By B A 2 AT AT JF
PATHESE (BFEBELIFPATEDS) 5 ]
(i) G H A LB E R BERMZALMEF
B 1i) A £ AT o] B 2 7] AT o] By £
B AR O B SR B 2 SRR 5 Bk
(iv) 1) A 5 FAT AT B 8 2 ] ST AT BT 4%
M 2 A SE S Akl B S S e P R
Z A B AL AT BB 2 R UL T B B &
P S N BB 5 B (v) A SR AT
A7 8 B 2 R BT AT T 5 A 2 AT AT
FRE R > A 4 AT AT B B 2 ) AT AT
P BB AR ATAE AT &8 2 AR A
Ao
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A W 5 A M i

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 wE_ZZ)N\FE+_HA=+—HILFEE

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 29. WEIBERERT ) )

99

The maximum number of shares of the Company in respect
of which options may be granted under the 2002 Scheme
is not permitted to exceed 160,854,651 shares, being 6.2%
of the total number of shares of the Company in issue as at
31st December, 2008, unless sharcholders’ approval of the
Company has been obtained. The total number of shares
of the Company issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted and to be granted to each participant
(including exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of grant (the
“Individual Limit”). Any further grant of options in excess
of the Individual Limit must be subject to shareholders’
approval in general meeting with such participant and his or

her associates abstaining from voting.

The acceptance of an offer of granting an option must be
made within 28 days from the date on which such offer is
made with a non-refundable payment of HK$1 from the
grantee to the Company by way of consideration for the grant
thereof. An option may be exercised at any time during a
period as the Board may determine which shall not be more
than 10 years commencing from the date of grant of the
option. Save as determined by the Board and provided in the
offer of the relevant options, there is no minimum period for
which an option must be held before it can be exercised. The
subscription price of a share of the Company in respect of any
option granted under the 2002 Scheme shall be such price
as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine, save
that such price will not be less than the highest of (i) closing
price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet of
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant of the option, which
must be a business day; (ii) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets on the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant of the option; and (iii) the nominal value of the

shares on the date of grant.

No options were granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under
the 2002 Scheme during the year ended 31st December,
2008 and 2007. No options were outstanding under the 2002
Scheme at 1st January, 2007, 31st December, 2007 and 2008.
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BRIESEAR N R R 2 e - R F
T AR FEE AT % 2 I R T AT
Z AR ) AR i v R E AR RO TR A
160,854,651 1% » RIjA =& )\ 4+ —
H=+t—HARRN A Z B 3A7 B0 485
2 6.2% ° B4 2 HE TR EIR B
BEE B AT+ A A M e
HELZ 2 W REE (45 B AT K it R AT
)T LMT M AT XA 34T 2 AN
O S RS R I AR
AN F AT BLE 2 1% (T8 F
BR D) o i) 2 B P AT % R A
Al 1 BR 2 W HRE R - FU 7B 46 B PR 7E B R
K B > A B2 E & H %
N T BT & b B2 o

R NJE R B 2 H LR 28 H
AR S 2 A0 s S > I g AR ) S A
130 > A 2 38 4% T W e 2 AE
UE RIS AS RT AR [] o f B E W] 7 85 5
J 7 RE B 30T R A B B AT A o Mk A%
[HENGEAEE 4 JER LRy i i
A o BREEH R A R E R AR A B
JRCRERZ H IRE T A e A > I S A T
FREREAT 8 2 AT 0 2B HE A 0 B e BR A -
MRIE T A GBI A AT ]
RERET & > AN w4 I R A 1 RR 1
MR ERREMEEE > R ER
AR () #2 I bE B H (2B B 8
¥ H ) FER A BT H A8 £ B 51 By 2
WA 5 (i) FE 4% IR RE B A A S R
W2 H LR B2 B B B SRS 3 T B Ay
W T 2 B R Gii) IR A R T
A H 2 HE > =852 mEE -

SR E AR IRE R EA
R FELE A= L
A SRR ~ AT - R8s
S o R FF AR R OFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B A Y5 A M i

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 wE_ZFZZ)N\F+_HA=+—HILFEE

30. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 30. 3B K4 A vt

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) established under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in November 2002. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group, in funds under the control of an independent
trustee. Under the rule of the MPF Scheme, the employer
and the employees are obliged to make contributions at the

specified rate under the MPF Scheme.

The contributions arising from the MPF Scheme charged to
the consolidated income statement represent contributions
paid and payable to the MPF Scheme by the Group at rates
specified in the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees in the PRC are members of respective state-
managed defined contribution retirement benefits schemes
operated by the local government. The employer and the
employees are obliged to make contributions at a certain
percentage of the payroll under rules of the schemes. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement

benefit schemes is to make the specified contributions.

AALEIA T A+ — A R IECE
P Rt il e 1)) 22 B — TE o A
A ek # (1R A e wh & 1) - ARt
B gEEAEEEEDHEA
Az iy — 8 3745 FE A LL B U B
MR SR AR Bk 3 2 A - R E KR B
WA AT 1 98 B e w # AT Y b A
H AR -

Jit &3 MR 2R A1 B 22 ol 5 AR < w2
PR 46 A 4E B 9% 48 A w3 R T
2z RO REMN TRESR

Pk o

SR 2 rb A B 2 2 A 5 3t T B
B e 2 B A B E A OR R AR A
Bl 2B o RARFH B R 3 KR
BYABEMAERHEZE THSHAES
PR o A 42 1 3B 5% 2 1B R AR L 1
ZME— AR AR T IR
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FERYER

At 31st December, 2008 A _EE/N\F+_H=1—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP AL M2 Y%
Approximate
Gross gross Estimated
Lot site area floor area Lease Group’s Stage of date of
Description number (Sq.m.) (Sq.m.) Use term interest completion  completion
RATR B AEM (Tir4
Gl WERA®  CPHX)  EECEGTK) Hg RAED  ZHER THRE  RHM
Investment property
Bk
Nossa Senhora Do Carmo, 8869 and 5,255 20,500 Residential ~ Freehold 60% Vacant land ~ Pending for
§.J., Taipa, Macau 10032 review
W Em BT 8869% 5255 20,500 tE KA 60% ZEMA AEER
10032
Approximate
gross
Lot floor area Lease Group’s
Description number (Sq.m.) Use term interest
A0 A i AEH
Gl B HRCEk) g RLAAED 2
Properties held for sale
(ERELIE S
Carparks, Phase II, Tomson Beautiful Space, Lot 1 and Lot 3, 17 Jiefang 10,165 Carpark Long term 93.53%
No. 56-156, Lane 50, Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park,
Guang Lan Road/Long Dong Avenue, Pudong New Area
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai, the PRC
B R A R R R A R R R AOCE s W ERILARHEER 10,165 Hifi &l 93.53%
5057562 156 i 58 JE — L 1788 K3

101 Rivera (Holdings) Limited JI[F4E @4 F/A 7] | Annual Report 2008 4F B 4F-#}



Schedule of Principal Properties

ELX/E 2

At 31st December, 2008 A _FE/F+_H=1—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP A 2 Wk )
(Continued)
Approximate
gross
Lot floor area Lease Group’s
Description number (Sq.m.) Use term interest
A0 A B KM
i) Yo Bt WRCETR) g AL&4ER ZHid
Properties held for sale (Continued)
Bk ()
Shop A on G/F and Basement of Block 1, 10258 1,875* Commercial ~ Freehold 60%
Shop A on G/F and Basement and Shop F
and G on G/F of Block 2 and Carparks nos. 18-24
on Basement, Edificio Tao Un,
Caminho da Povoacao de Cheok Ka,
Taipa, Macau
VAT B T OB 2 T S B 26— e 10258 1,875* [LES KA 60%
HTT AR B e ~ 55 M RA 7 B e~ R
GHIL B Hu 9.2 5318 2 24 B3
45 Shops on the G/F and carparks on 21559 1,586 Commercial  Short term 100%
Podium Level, Edificio Centro
Commercial Pat Tat, Edificio Pat
Tat Sun Chuen, Avenida de Venceslau
de Morais, Macau
WPTRAR ISR VAR i T 2 45 Wmai S 21559 1,586* [GES i 100%

P& b2 Hfi

*

Excluding carparks
* REFEE
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Schedule of Principal Properties

HHEPER

At 31st December, 2008 i _EFE/4F+_H=1—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY AN ASSOCIATE

BE AN ZME

Approximate
Gross gross Estimated
Lot site area floorarea  Lease Group’s Stage of date of
Description number (Sq.m.) (Sq.m.) term interest Use completion completion
WRMER B %M fhiitz
it fi B CEAX)  mRCER) BAEN  ZHER iif SR Bt e H M
Properties under development
b PE
3 parcels of land Lot 41, 274,323 407,678 Mediumto  37% Residential,  Residential: 2010 - 2011
situated at Lot 41, 10 Jiefang, long term commercial — Phase III
10 Jiefang, Zhangjiang and other construction has
Zhangjiang Town, Town, use been started in
Lot 1, 26 Jiefang, Lot 1, April of 2008
and Lot 1, 27 Jiefang 26 Jiefang,
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Zhangjiang — Remaining areais ~ Note
Park, Pudong New Hi-Tech pending for
Area, Shanghai Park, Pudong development
the PRC New Area
and Lot 1, Commercial:
27 Jiefang, — Phase 11, Note
Zhangjiang Chuan Qi
Hi-Tech Park, Commercial
Pudong Centre is under
New Area planning
i R T R AR 274,323 407,678 R 37% e mER T “E-REER
RILHE0 410 RILE =] iz — $=Hek=%%F  —“Z——F
RILA P ER 10fY41 JVEM AR
26851 R AR
g vliva RILE R RER — BMERAGRRE M
R 265501 L
Yt EE it
— BAWERS Y
TEA B
Note: The development plans are still under review, the completion time WA - BRI AE A ST > B IR e T ST

for these property projects cannot be estimated at this stage.
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Schedule of Principal Properties

ELX/E 2

At 31st December, 2008 A _FE/F+_H=1—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY AN ASSOCIATE BEAIRAEZIWE @
(Continued)
Approximate
gross
Lot floor area Lease Group’s
Description number (Sq.m.) term interest Use
1BE 4% A i AL
G Ho B i HRCE k) AR 2w B
Properties held for sale
(RNELIE S
Carparks, Phase II, Lot 1/4, 27 Jiefang, 27,744 Long term 37% Carpark
Zhangjiang Tomson Garden, Zhangjiang
No. 17, 22, 25-32, 36, Hi-Tech Park,
Lane 825, Chen Hui Road, Pudong New Area
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park,
Pudong New Area,
Shanghai, the PRC
e L R SRR IR VL e A SRR [ 27,744 =214 37%  Hfi
JRIEEE8257717 22~ 258 32 36%% SRIL B
oL b 5 — A 271514

Investment properties

Eid<g/ES
Phase [, Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Port, Lot 1/2, 26 Jiefang, 14,517 Medium term 37% Commercial
No. 690 Bibo Road, Zhangjiang
Zhangjiang High-Tech Park, Hi-Tech Park,
Pudong New Area, Pudong New Area
Shanghai, the PRC
R AT T 14,517 i 37%  WiE
RILH P R R SRV P R R
B 6903k 2685712

RIBETE
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Schedule of Principal Properties

HHEPER

At 31st December, 2008 i _EFE/4F+_H=1—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY AN ASSOCIATE

BEANRKAEZWE @)

(Continued)
Approximate
gross
Lot floor area Lease Group’s
Description number (Sq.m.) term interest Use
e A AEH
wE Ho B i HRCEIR) RN P2 T}
Investment properties (Continued)
BeE W ()
Phase II, Zhangjiang Micro-electronics Port, Lot 1/2, 26 Jiefang, 82,457 Medium term 37% Commercial
No. 690 Bibo Road, Zhangjiang
Zhangjiang High-Tech Park, Hi-Tech Park,
Pudong New Area, Pudong New Area
Shanghai, the PRC
FH B R SR R AT 6 82,457 EA] 37% ¥
SRV AL I SRIL A FHY E R
2B 6909k 26758512
SRILHLE T
Phase I, Chuan Qi Commercial Centre, Lot 1/6, 26 Jiefang, 26,492 Medium term 37% Commercial
No. 635 Bibo Road, Zhangjiang
Zhangjiang High-Tech Park, Hi-Tech Park,
Pudong New Area, Pudong New Area
Shanghai, the PRC
FH B SRR T ST 26,492 ikt 37% P
SRIL R AL I RIL AL R
AP H 6359k 26755i1/6

LIRS e
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Five-Year Financial Summary

T4 W 05 1 2

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

B R

Year Ended 31st December
BRETZH=1 —HIE4EE

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
SEENE S ZEREFE ZERAE ZEREFE ZERAE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
THT THIT T T T
(Restated)
(E51)
Gross proceeds from operations Ll 35 AR 328,786 1,702 372,954 490,182 29,114
Profit before taxation & B s A 187,135 18,704 233,275 305,546 33,672
Taxation B (17,227) 38 (69,338) (75,714) 441
Profit for the year AE A 169,908 18,742 163,937 229,832 34,113
Attributable to: AR
Equity holders of the Company ARNFIR R 163,300 18,760 159,849 220,803 34,202
Minority interests DB A 6,608 (18) 4,088 9,029 (89)
169,908 18,742 163,937 229,832 34,113
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Five-Year Financial Summary

T4 B 5 B L
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET A EEAEER
At 31st December
B+=H=+—H
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
SREME  CEEEE  CERAE CFELE CRBAK
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
oo Tt Tt SR T#x
(Restated)
(E51)
Property, plant and equipment  ¥JZ&~ 5 Kk ffi 528 498 456 422 401
Investment property Ve~ L/ES 28,563 28,563 28,563 28,563 28,563
Interest in an associate IR - YNEPA £ 213,208 224,795 306,960 334,506 317,870
Other investments Hiig 258,390 — — — —
Available-for-sale investments A — 330,963 326,976 478,501 231,275
Deferred tax asset RIEH TS E = 49 — — —
Net current assets B G 262,647 279,312 367,937 554,644 596,046
Total assets less current B WO
liabilities AfE 763,336 864,180 1,030,892 1,396,636 1,174,155
Equity attributable to equity A7 R A
holders of the Company fEfs 748,657 849,194 1,016,794 1,375,431 1,149,524
Minority interests DR A 14,679 14,986 14,098 21,205 22,431
763,336 864,180 1,030,892 1,396,636 1,171,955
Non-current liability FREaE = = = = 2,200
763,336 864,180 1,030,892 1,396,636 1,174,155
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